
AGENDA
SEWARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, June 16, 2015 @ 7:00 PM 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a meeting of the City Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska will 
be held at 7:00 PM  on Tuesday, June 16, 2015, in the Municipal Building Council Chambers, 142 North 
7th Street, Seward, Nebraska, which meeting will be open to the public.  The Mayor and City Council 
reserve the right to adjourn into Closed Session as per Section 84-1410 of the Nebraska Revised Statutes. 
An Agenda for such meeting, kept continually current, is available at the Office of the City Clerk, 537 
Main Street, Seward, Nebraska, during normal business hours. Individuals requiring physical or sensory 
accommodations, who desire to attend or participate, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 
402.643.2928 no later than 3:30p.m.on the Friday preceding the Council Meeting.  

City financial claims and related invoices will be available for Councilmember review, audit and 
voluntary signatures at Council Chambers beginning 30 minutes prior to the scheduled meeting time. 

AGENDA ITEMS

CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Eickmeier

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE-MOMENT OF SILENCE - Mayor Eickmeier

DISCLOSURE OF OPEN MEETINGS ACT & OTHER NOTIFICATIONS - Mayor Eickmeier
This is an Open Meeting of the Seward Nebraska Governing Body. The City of Seward abides by the 
Nebraska Open Meetings Act in conducting business.  A copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act is 
displayed on the north wall of this meeting room facility as required. Disclosure of meeting recording 
processes is posted in the Meeting Room.  A participant sign-in sheet is available for use by any Citizen 
addressing the Council. Presenters shall approach the podium, state their name & address for the Clerk’s 
record and are asked to limit remarks to five minutes.  All remarks shall be directed to the Mayor who 
shall determine by whom any appropriate response shall be made.  The City of Seward reserves the right 
to adjust the order of items on this Agenda if necessary and may elect to take action on any of the items 
listed.

ROLL CALL - Mayor Eickmeier

1. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF DRAFT MINUTES OF JUNE 2, 2015 - Bonnie 
Otte

2. CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA
A. Claims & Payables Reports
B. City Clerk-Treasurer Report
C. City Codes Director Report
D. Police Department Report
E. Infrastructure Cost Items Reimbursable Back to the City
F. New Firefighter Shelby Rood

3. CONFIRMATION OF MAYOR'S APPOINTMENTS - Mayor Eickmeier
A. Citizen Advisory Review Committee - 3 Yr Term - Reappoint Justin Hartman, 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 1 / 177



Resignation Byron Winter
B. Cemetery Board - 3-Yr Term - Reappoint Roger Glawatz & Greg Zabka

4. PUBLIC HEARING - 7:00 P.M. - CONSIDERATION OF TIF APPLICATION OF TWO 
CREEKS HOLDING - TIF Attorney, Andrew Willis

A. Presentation and Review of TIF Application
B. Presentation and Review of Cost-Benefit Analysis
C. Presentation and Review of Amendment to Redevelopment Plan
D. Presentation and Review of Redevelopment Agreement
E. Consideration of Resolution approving the Redevelopment Plan Amendment
F. Consideration of a Resolution Approving the Redevelopment Agreement and the 

Issuance of TIF Indebtedness for the Redevelopment Project

5. PUBLIC HEARING - 7:00 P.M. - PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT - CNG FIRST 
ADDITION FINAL PLAT - John Hughes

A. Consideration of an Ordinance approving the final plat for CNG First Addition

6. CONSIDERATION OF A PLAN FOR STORM WATER RUNOFF AND SANITARY 
SEWER IMPROVEMENTS FOR ST. JOHN'S NEW DAYCARE CENTER TO BE 
LOCATED AT HILLCREST DR AND COLUMBIA AVE - John Hughes

A. Consideration of financial participation in the relocation of sanitary sewer line and 
improvements

B. Consideration of financial participation in the relocation storm sewer and consideration 
of constructing a new storm sewer line

7. CONSIDERATION OF A DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT WITH BLUESTEM ENERGY 
SOLUTIONS ON RENEWABLE ENERGY OPTIONS- Adam Herink

8. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDED LEASE AGREEMENT WITH ALLTEL 
COMMUNICATION OF NEBRASKA, INC d/b/a VERIZON WIRELESS FOR 
PLACEMENT OF EQUIPMENT ON THE CITY'S WATER TOWER - Joe Coyle & John 
Hughes

9. CONSIDERATION OF A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH HAMILTON EQUIPMENT 
FOR EXCAVATOR - John Hughes

A. Consideration of a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute all documents related to 
the lease agreement.

10. CONSIDERATION OF DIGESTER STORAGE TANK EMERGENCY REPAIRS - 
Possible bid award (Tim Richtig)

11. CONSIDERATION OF REQUEST TO UPGRADE CROSSWALK SIGNAGE & 
RELOCATION OF CROSSWALK ON N COLUMBIA AVE (Mel Aldrich)

12. CAPITAL PROJECTS UPDATE -  John Hughes

13. FUTURE REQUESTS FOR COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS OR ADMINISTRATIVE 
ACTION - Mayor Eickmeier

14. ANNOUNCEMENT OF UPCOMING EVENTS - Mayor Eickmeier
A. July 4th Celebration

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 2 / 177



15. CONSIDERATION OF  CITY ADMINISTRATOR
A. Appointment
B. Contract (Employment Agreement)

16. MOTION TO ADJOURN

I, Bonnie Otte, the duly appointed, qualified and acting Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/Budget 
& Human Resource Director of the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certify:

That the foregoing Notice of Meeting and Agenda for such meeting has been posted in the 
following places: Seward City Hall, Seward County Courthouse, Seward Memorial Library and 
CityofSewardNE.com  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand officially and affixed the seal of the City 
this 12th day of June, 2015.

_________________________________
Bonnie Otte
Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/Budget & Human Resource Director

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 3 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G1

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF DRAFT MINUTES OF 
JUNE 2, 2015 - Bonnie Otte

Administrative Report: A motion to approve the minutes as written or with modifications would be 
in order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 4 / 177



June 2, 2015 

 

1 

 

The Seward City Council met at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, June 2, 2015, with 

Mayor Joshua Eickmeier presiding and Assistant Administrator /Clerk-Treasurer 

/Budget & Human Resources Director Bonnie Otte recording the proceedings.  Upon 

roll call, the following Councilmembers were present: Charles Lieske, Ellen Beck, 

Sid Kamprath, Dean Fritz, Barbara Pike, John Singleton, Chris Schmit, Dick Hans. 

Other officials present: Attorney Patti Vannoy, in absence of City Attorney Kelly 

Hoffschneider. Absent: Interim City Administrator Jack Vavra. 

 

Notice of the meeting was given in advance thereof by the method of 

communicating advance notice of the regular and special meetings of the City Council 

of the City of Seward, Nebraska, as stated in Ordinance No. 2015-08, which was 

adopted on the 5th day of May, 2015; said method stating that the notice of such 

meeting, with the agenda thereon, be posted in the following places:  City Hall, 

Seward County Courthouse, Municipal Building, and Seward Public Library.  The 

certificate of posting notice is attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting 

was simultaneously given to the Mayor and all members of the City Council and 

a copy of their acknowledgment of receipt of notice and the agenda are attached 

to these minutes.  Availability of the agenda was communicated in the advance 

notice and in the notice to the Mayor and Council of this meeting.  All proceedings 

hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance 

of the public. 

 

THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

Mayor Eickmeier announced that a copy of the Agenda for this meeting is 

posted in the front window of the Municipal Building and copies are available 

on the north wall where a copy of the Open Meetings Act is also posted for public 

inspection.  He also noted that any citizen wishing to address the Council should 

come to the podium, state their name and address and limit their comments to five 

minutes.  All remarks should be directed to the Mayor/Chairperson, who will then 

determine who will make any appropriate response.  The City of Seward reserves 

the right to adjust the order of items on this agenda if necessary and may elect 

to take action on any of the items listed.  

  

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MAY 19, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 

      Councilmember Pike moved, seconded by Councilmember Singleton, that the 

minutes of the May 19, 2015 City Council meeting be approved. 

 

 Aye:  Hans, Beck, Schmit, Pike, Fritz, Lieske, Kamprath, Singleton 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent: None. Motion carried. 

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA CONSIDERATION ITEMS 

 

 Councilmember Pike moved, seconded by Councilmember Fritz, that the 

following Consent Agenda items be approved in one single motion:  

 

A. Claims & Payables Reports 
B. Seward County Economic Development Corporation Director’s Report 
C. Infrastructure Cost Items Reimbursable Back to the City. 

 

CLAIMS LIST 

6-2-15 

COUNCIL MEETING 

 

Abbreviations: Bu, Building Upkeep; Eq, Equipment; Ex, Expense; Ma, 

Maintenance; Mi, Mileage; Misc, Miscellaneous; Re, Repairs; Sa, Salaries, Se, 

Services; Su, Supplies; Ut, Utilities, CI, Capital Improvements; GU, Grounds 

Upkeep. 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 5 / 177



June 2, 2015 

 

2 

 

 

Payroll 

 

181,808.48 

Nebraska Mosquito & Vector Control Assoc, Trng   70.00 

Card Maker Magazine, Su 

 

39.97 

Eric Ahrens, Ex 

 

50.00 

Aqua-Chem, Su, Bu 

 

882.31 

Alan Baldwin, Meals, Trng, Mi 

 

433.80 

Black Hills Energy, Ut   3,452.52 

Blackburn Mfg, Re   209.22 

WS Bunch Co, Re   3,360.00 

Capital Business Systems, Ma 

 

330.55 

Carroll Dist/Const Supply, Re, Su 

 

192.51 

Chase Card 

 

4,544.78 

  FirstAidWeb, Trng 59.85   

  Amazon.com, Eq, Su 460.09   

  Holiday Inn Express, Trng 83.00 

   Walmart, Su 419.33 

   Cellar Bar & Grill, Meal 12.40 

   Home Depot, Eq 394.83 

   Lowes, Su 297.88 

   American Legion Natl, Fees 915.00 

   Swimoutlet.com, Swimwear 1,832.40 

   Zoomshift, Se 70.00 

 Seward Buildings & Grounds 

 

2,000.00 

Seward Electric Fund, Ut   34,241.69 

ME Collins Contracting, Re, Ci 

 

77,508.66 

Conner Roofing Co, Bu 

 

175.00 

Control Services,    1,860.09 

Danko Emergency Eq, Re 

 

257.47 

Dean Davis, Ex 

 

110.00 

Dutton-Lainson, Su 

 

69,625.86 

EMC Ins, Ins 

 

3,000.00 

Ehlers Electronics, Re 

 

118.00 

Emergency Medical Products, Su 

 

270.00 

Fastenal, Su 

 

205.71 

Fehlhafer's, Re 

 

50.00 

Jeremy Geidel, Ex 

 

110.00 

General Code, Se 

 

2,570.40 

Cheryl Gerdes, Re 

 

91.45 

Gerhold Concrete, Re, Su 

 

1,838.56 

Gongol DJ & Assoc, Re 

 

245.00 

Antonio Gonzalez, Ex 

 

105.00 

Great Plains Comm, Se 

 

368.00 

James Hall, Ex 

 

45.00 

Hireright Solutions, Se 

 

102.45 

Hobson Automotive & Tire, Re 

 

662.45 

Husker Electric Supply, Re, Su 

 

908.76 

Hydraulic Equipment Service, Re 

 

2,432.59 

JEO Consulting Group, Se 

 

2,780.00 

Jackson Services, Se 

 

115.27 

Joseph Krause, Ex 

 

25.00 

Kriz-Davis, Re, Se, Su 

 

4,656.43 

Latsch's, Su 

 

206.97 

Lothrop Farms, Gu 

 

940.00 

MC2, Re 

 

209.96 

Matheson Tri-Gas, Su 

 

241.10 

Dan McElravy, Ex 

 

450.00 

Memorial Health-Drug, Ex 

 

167.00 

Memorial Health-Meals, Su 

 

2,353.82 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 6 / 177



June 2, 2015 

 

3 

 

Menards, Bu, Su 

 

30.57 

Brett Meyer, Ex   120.00 

Brian Meyer, Ex 

 

50.00 

Mid-American Benefits, Ins 

 

906.87 

Midland Scientific, Su 

 

72.03 

Midwest Turf & Irrigation, Re 

 

693.96 

Mohrhoff Power, Su 

 

112.75 

Municipal Supply, Re   1,137.55 

Nebraska Equipment, Re, Su   277.43 

Nebraska Public Health, Se   274.00 

Nebraska Law Enforcement, Trng   95.00 

Nebraska Roads Dept, Ma, Re   50,029.39 

Northern Safety Co, Re 

 

204.95 

O'Reilly Auto Parts, Re 

 

185.28 

Olsson Associates, Se 

 

1,136.87 

Orscheln Farm & Home, Bu, Su, Eq 

 

368.72 

Brian Peters, Mi 

 

133.40 

Plunkett's Pest Control, Bu 

 

55.12 

Precision Concrete Cutting, Re 

 

180.00 

Precision Tool & Machine, Su, Re 

 

113.70 

Quill Corp, Su 

 

834.11 

Monte Reeves, Refnd 

 

70.00 

Joseph Reimers, Ex 

 

120.00 

Resco Electric Utility Supply, Re 

 

1,040.00 

Rose Equipment, Re, Su 

 

475.77 

Sam's Club, Su, Bu 

 

151.51 

Sam's Club, Su 

 

145.49 

Bill Sleight, Refnd 

 

60.00 

Karen Snavely, Refnd 

 

60.00 

Sports Express, Su 

 

2,160.05 

Suhr & Lichty Ins, Ins 

 

769.00 

Supplyworks, Su 

 

1,555.15 

Terracon, Gu   307.00 

Tiiger, Equip   2,607.97 

Time Warner Cable, Se 

 

79.38 

Union Bank & Trust Co, Int   7,862.40 

Jack Vavra, Se   4,913.86 

Wesco Distribution, Su, Equip   437.63 

Brandon Wood, Ex   25.00 

  Total 

 

486,273.74 

    

   

 Aye:  Hans, Schmit, Beck, Fritz, Pike, Lieske, Singleton, Kamprath 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent: None. Motion carried. 

 

3. PRESENTATION BY AYARS & AYARS, INC ON POSSIBLE RAIL SITE PROJECT 

 

 Mike Ayars and Cory Barber of Ayars & Ayars, Inc. presented a Master Plan 

concept for development of the Seward/Lincoln Rail Campus site. The project calls 

for a commercial industrial plant that manufactures piping to be used in the oil 

industry. The site provides for the necessary train rail to bring in the raw steel 

and to ship out the piping. The product would be shipped to North Dakota, Wyoming, 

Pennsylvania, and Texas. Mr. Ayars stated the project has been in process for 

over four years. He stated the project would include a total capital investment 

of $100,000,000 plus; employ 150 people; have an annual anticipated payroll of 

$6,240,000; building investment of $45,000,000 for an 868,000 s.f. building; 

equipment investment of $30,000,000; and annual rail car usage of 1500 cars. He 

stated items to address to move the project forward are access to natural gas, 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 7 / 177



June 2, 2015 

 

4 

 

electricity (7,000 Kw load), water/sewer, land acquisition, railroad development 

and access roads. Mr. Ayars stated there is a lot of work to be done with a lot 

of different entities and utilities; however, if all falls into place, the timeline 

is groundbreaking in September 2015 with an opening date of May 2017. Mr. Ayars 

stated the project team and investors are very interested and excited about this 

site. He stated that as the project moves forward and conversations continue, 

they will be back before the City Council as needed for updates and/or action. 

 

 There were brief discussions regarding use of the rail site land that is 

not needed for the project, emissions, water needs and disposal, environmental 

impacts, auto and train traffic. No action was required or taken. 

 

4. CONSIDERATION OF SPECIAL DESIGNATED LIQUOR PERMIT FOR RO’S LOUNGE 

 

Councilmember Singleton moved, seconded by Councilmember Pike, that the 

Special Designated Liquor Permit submitted by RO’s Lounge, Seward, Nebraska for 

a Beer Garden to be held June 30, 2015 through July 5, 2015, at 719 Main Street, 

Seward, be approved.  

 
   Aye:  Hans, Lieske, Beck, Pike, Singleton, Fritz, Schmit, Kamprath 

   Nay:  None. 

   Absent: None.  Motion carried. 

 

5. CONSIDERATION OF AWARDING BID FOR THE 14TH STREET SUBSTATION CONSTRUCTION 

CONTRACT TO IES COMMERCIAL, INC IN THE AMOUNT OF $475,076 

 

Councilmember Beck moved, seconded by Councilmember Singleton, that the 

bid for the 14th Street substation construction contract be awarded to IES 

Commercial, Inc in the amount of $475,076. 

 

Aye:  Hans, Lieske, Beck, Pike, Singleton, Fritz, Schmit, Kamprath 

   Nay:  None. 

   Absent: None.  Motion carried. 

 

6.  CONSIDERATION OF A PLAN FOR STORM WATER RUNOFF AND SANITARY SEWER 

IMPROVEMENTS FOR ST. JOHN’S NEW DAYCARE CENTER TO BE LOCATED AT HILLCREST DR. 

AND COLUMBIA AVE. 

 

A. Consideration of financial participation in the relocation of 

sanitary sewer line and improvements. 

B. Consideration of financial participation in the relocation of storm 

sewer and consideration of constructing a new storm sewer line. 

 

Jim Berg, Rega Engineering Group, Inc. addressed the Council as 

spokesperson for the St. John’s Lutheran Church. He stated the Church is in 

the process of building a new Child Development Center at the intersection 

of Columbia Avenue and Hillcrest Drive. Mr. Berg reviewed several items 

involving the project that impacts the sanitary and storm sewer systems in 

the immediate building site.  

 

Mr. Berg stated the first issue is the relocating the existing sanitary 

sewer that cuts across the property where the new center will be built. The 

new line will be an upgraded 8” PVC line. He stated this portion of the project 

has already been bid out and the contractor is on site ready to do the work. 

He said the cost to relocate the line is $104,754 and requested the City consider 

paying for 50% of the cost, due to the community benefit for the City to relocate 

the line while other work is being done in the area. The City’s cost would 

be $52,377. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 8 / 177



June 2, 2015 

 

5 

 

He stated the Church is also proposing the sanitary sewer lines that 

run along the west side of the project to the north and south could also be 

replaced as they are clay tile and it would be beneficial to the City to redo 

this line now. 

 

Mr. Berg went on to address another utility issue. He stated the current 

size of the existing 30-inch reinforced concrete storm drain that cuts across 

the property from the northeast to the southwest is undersized (based on their 

Civil Engineer review) and will not handle a 5-year storm event, which does 

not meet design standards. He stated the Church is proposing the City upsize 

the line to a 48” line reinforced concrete pipe. Installing the new larger 

storm sewer now will prevent digging up the existing 30-inch storm sewer and 

installing the larger size under the proposed parking lot (located to the south 

of the new center), in the future. The Church is willing to provide the required 

easements to construct and maintain the City-owned storm sewer and is offering 

to delay constructing the parking lot to align with the City’s funding cycle. 

 

Mr. Berg also commented that their Civil Engineer provided some 

calculations with regard to the storm drainage issues and understand the City 

is looking into a long-term solution. He said in the interim, the Church is 

offering to donate a parcel of land to the east of the proposed Center site 

to be used as a detention cell. The City would have ownership and maintenance 

of this property and would provide the construction of the detention cell. 

 

Mr. Berg provided a breakout of estimated costs: 

 

Church to pay 50%: 

Relocate existing 8’ sanitary sewer line  $104,754 

 

City to pay 100%:     

New 8” Sanitary Sewer (West-South Section)   51,990 

New 8” Sanitary Sewer (West-North Section)   46,290 

New 48” Storm Sewer (Remove Existing 30”)   201,900 

New 48” Storm Sewer (Abandon Existing)   119,950 

Construct and maintain detention cell   Cost unknown 

     

 

Mayor Eickmeier stated that he did not believe any of these projects 

were in the current budget or capital improvement plan and it may be difficult 

to assume the costs in the current budget year. He stated the Council can choose 

to contribute to the project(s); however, it is typical to identify such utility 

improvements in the capital plan. Whether the proposed improvements are 

beneficial to the City would likely be a philosophical debate. 

 

Water/Wastewater Director Tim Richtig addressed the Council and stated 

the 8” sanitary sewer line does have to be relocated in order to construct 

the new center, but does not feel it benefits the City to move the line. He 

said he does not know the condition of the north and south sanitary sewer lines, 

which would have to be inspected to determine if they should be replaced. He 

stated there are a lot of clay lines in the City that are in good shape and 

continue to service the City’s utility needs. He stated he has concerns with 

accepting the property for the proposed detention cell without knowing the 

acreage and capacity, plus there are a lot of utilities in the area and doesn’t 

know what is under the ground.  

 

A question was raised regarding the property owned by Curt Coddington 

to the west of the proposed parking lot and whether this development will 

increase the flooding problems for the property. Jeff Voehl, Trustee for the 

Building Committee stated he approached Mr. Coddington and he is o.k. with 

the plan.  

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 9 / 177



June 2, 2015 

 

6 

 

 

Dan Rosenthal, engineer for the Church, stated there was a hydrogeological 

study completed for this area a couple of years back and the current detention 

cell to the south of the proposed development handles the water runoff from 

Hillcrest. The proposed new detention cell would have a capacity of 

approximately 16,000 c.f. of storage.  

 

Street Superintendent Mel Aldrich stated, should the City choose to 

construct the new 48” storm sewer piping, he would suggest leaving the current 

30” storm pipe in place to be used for additional water storage during a rain 

event.  

 

A question was raised as to whether there was savings on any of the current 

budgeted completed projects that could be shifted to any of the proposed projects 

for this development. Public Facilities/Capital Improvement & GIS Director 

John Hughes stated the storm sewer projects would probably have to be considered 

in the next budget. 

 

An additional question was how the groundwork would begin within the 

next few weeks if the City had not made a decision on financial participation. 

Mr. Berg stated the Church is moving forward with the plan as presented, but 

should the City choose to participate, they can advise the Church of that 

decision at a later date. 

 

Councilmember Schmit moved, seconded by Councilmember Singleton, that 

City staff, in particular, Water/Wastewater Department, Public Facilities 

Department, and Street Department provide a written recommendation to the City 

Council regarding the condition of the current sanitary sewer system 

(north/south sections) on the west side of the proposed St. John’s Development 

Center; review of water runoff and hydrogeological study to make sure former 

study included this size of building and size of parking lot; the estimate 

for costs of constructing the detention cell; and the timing of the project 

(build in phases), and budgetary options and return with the information at 

the June 16 City Council meeting. 

 

Aye: Schmit, Lieske, Beck, Fritz, Pike, Hans, Kamprath, Singleton. 

    Nay: None. 

    Absent: None. Motion carried. 

 

7.  CONSIDERATION OF LIQUOR LICENSE MANAGER APPLICATION FOR WALMART STORE 885, 

1326 280TH RD 

 

Councilmember Singleton moved, seconded by Councilmember Pike, that 

Elizabeth A. Punko be approved as manager of the retail class D Liquor License 

for Walmart Store 885. 

    

    Aye: Schmit, Lieske, Beck, Fritz, Pike, Hans, Kamprath, Singleton. 

    Nay: None. 

    Absent: None. Motion carried. 

 

8.  NOTICE OF RESIGNATION OF COUNCILMEMBER CHARLES LIESKE FROM THE SEWARD CITY 

COUNCIL 

 

Councilmember Lieske presented a written letter of resignation from the 

Seward City Council effective July 7, 2015, due to accepting a new work 

opportunity and moving to Scottsbluff. 

 

Mayor Eickmeier thanked Councilmember Lieske for his service to the 

community and wished him and his family the best. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 10 / 177



June 2, 2015 

 

7 

 

9.  CAPITAL PROJECTS REPORT 

 

 Public Facilities/Capital Improvement & GIS Director John Hughes provided 

an update and Capital Projects Report dated 6/2/15. 

 

 Councilmember Singleton moved, seconded by Councilmember Fritz, that 

the Capital Projects Report dated June 2, 2015 be accepted. 

 

Aye: Hans, Lieske, Beck, Schmit, Fritz, Pike, Kamprath, Singleton 

Nay: None. 

Absent: None. Motion carried. 

 

10.  FUTURE REQUESTS FOR COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS OR ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION 

  

 None 

  
11.  ANNOUNCEMENT OF UPCOMING EVENTS 

  

A. July 4th Celebration 

B. June 17 - Waste  Compact Meeting - Milford – Councilmember Beck 

volunteered to represent the City at this meeting 

 

12.   MOTION TO ADJOURN 

 

Councilmember Singleton moved, seconded by Councilmember Pike, that the 

June 2, 2015 City Council Meeting be adjourned. 

 

Aye:  Hans, Schmit, Pike, Beck, Fritz, Lieske, Kamprath, Singleton  

Nay:  None 

Absent: None.  Motion carried. 

 

 

                                 THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

__________________________________ 

                                     Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

___________________________________ 

Bonnie Otte 

Assistant Administrator 

Clerk-Treasurer 

Budget & Human Resources Director 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 11 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G2

CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA
Claims & Payables Reports

City Clerk-Treasurer Report

City Codes Director Report

Police Department Report

Infrastructure Cost Items Reimbursable Back to the City

New Firefighter Shelby Rood

Administrative Report: After review of listed Consent Agenda items and supporting 
documents/reports, one motion to approve the consent agenda would be in order. Council may 
choose to pull any item from the Consent Agenda and consider/act on it separately.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 12 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 13 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 14 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 15 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 16 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 17 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 18 / 177



Building Permits May - 2015

CURRENT YEAR:  May 2015 LAST YEAR: May 2014

Permits Quantity Permit Fee Valuation Permits Quantity Permit Fee Valuation
NEW CONST. 3 1,420.30$            433,692.47$           NEW CONST. 1 -$                   150,000.00$            
REMODEL/ADDIT. 23 1,763.45$            480,920.00$           REMODEL/ADDIT. 11 3,320.00$          1,884,344.69$         
ACCESSORY 6 180.00$              65,570.00$             ACCESSORY 27 424.50$             185,840.00$            
ELECTRIC 8 607.25$              -$                        ELECTRIC 8 1,381.25$          -$                        
PLUMBING 11 565.00$              -$                        PLUMBING 19 1,140.00$          -$                        
MECHANICAL 6 355.00$              -$                        MECHANICAL 6 800.00$             -$                        
SEWER TAP 2 500.00$              -$                        SEWER TAP 0 -$                   -$                        
WATER TAP 2 1,640.00$            -$                        WATER TAP 0 -$                   -$                        
TEMP. ELEC. 2 100.00$              -$                        TEMP. ELEC. 0 -$                   -$                        
ELECTRIC SER. 2 400.00$              -$                        ELECTRIC SER. 0 -$                   -$                        
TOTALS 65 7,531.00$            980,182.47$           TOTALS 72 7,065.75$          2,220,184.69$         

YEAR TO DATE January to December 2015 YEAR TO DATE January to December 2014

Permits Quantitiy Permit Fee Valuation Permits Quantity Permit Fee Valuation
NEW CONST. 8 7,017.40$            2,877,730.03$        NEW CONST. 12 36,052.23$        18,282,299.06$       
REMODEL/ADDIT. 76 5,496.60$            1,479,394.00$        REMODEL/ADDIT. 41 291,697.95$      16,051,521.69$       
ACCESSORY 58 9,032.00$            1,064,044.00$        ACCESSORY 43 15,617.50$        510,788.00$            
ELECTRIC 36 2,048.75$            -$                        ELECTRIC 26 17,627.75$        -$                        
PLUMBING 32 1,405.00$            -$                        PLUMBING 56 14,085.00$        -$                        
MECHANICAL 17 880.00$              -$                        MECHANICAL 27 11,641.00$        -$                        
SEWER TAP 8 2,000.00$            -$                        SEWER TAP 8 13,700.00$        -$                        
WATER TAP 8 6,560.00$            -$                        WATER TAP 8 35,225.00$        -$                        
TEMP. ELEC. 7 350.00$              -$                        TEMP. ELEC. 8 2,700.00$          -$                        
ELECTRIC SER. 7 1,600.00$            -$                        ELECTRIC SER. 8 13,350.00$        -$                        
TOTALS 257 36,389.75$          5,421,168.03$        TOTALS 237 451,696.43$      34,844,608.75$       

FISCAL YEAR: Oct. 2014 to Sept. 2015 FISCAL YEAR: Oct. 2013 to Sept. 2014

Permits Quantitiy Permit Fee Valuation Permits Quantity Permit Fee Valuation
NEW CONST. 17 11,561.60$          4,264,029.83$        NEW CONST. 23 11,668.03$        4,613,209.06$         
REMODEL/ADDIT. 98 371,935.60$        1,681,386.00$        REMODEL/ADDIT. 76 10,023.45$        4,350,482.69$         
ACCESSORY 92 301,615.75$        685,968.75$           ACCESSORY 54 1,837.00$          436,925.00$            
ELECTRIC 60 3,655.50$            -$                        ELECTRIC 75 6,713.00$          -$                        
PLUMBING 58 3,247.00$            -$                        PLUMBING 144 7,728.00$          -$                        
MECHANICAL 36 3,128.00$            -$                        MECHANICAL 57 6,326.00$          -$                        
SEWER TAP 25 6,250.00$            -$                        SEWER TAP 16 4,000.00$          -$                        
WATER TAP 25 18,885.00$          -$                        WATER TAP 17 12,325.00$        -$                        
TEMP. ELEC. 25 1,250.00$            -$                        TEMP. ELEC. 17 850.00$             -$                        
ELECTRIC SER. 25 5,200.00$            -$                        ELECTRIC SER. 18 4,200.00$          -$                        
TOTALS 461 726,728.45$        -$                        TOTALS 497 65,670.48$        9,400,616.75$         

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 19 / 177



 

 

 

Payroll 134,554.99

Beatrice Ford, Eq 38,825.95

Advanced Floor, Bu 250.00

Alamar Uniforms, Su 129.83

Alliance Tech., Se 6,415.75

Amazon.Com, Su 691.41

Anderson, Mitch, Re 1,835.66

Aqua-Chem, Su 1,457.84

Ashby, Lisa, Se 25.00

Assoc. Bag, Su 1,015.42

Awards Unlimited, Su 193.00

Baker & Taylor, Su 2,325.19

Baldinger, Charlotte, Mi 26.45

Bluebird Nursery, Su 651.05

Bork, Ronald/Marily, Re 13.90

Capital Bus., Se 304.00

Cash-Wa, Su 462.45

Library Petty Cash, Su 222.49

Merchant Serv., Se 1,113.16

City Petty Cash, Su 234.53

Commonwealth Elec., Se 20,293.55

Constellation Gas, Ut 416.52

Control Serv., Ma 2,078.30

Cooper Power, Eq 44,149.27

D & S Forklifts, Re 659.84

Danko Emer., Re 53.64

Electronic Eng., Re 508.10

Emer. Med., Su 689.13

Farmers Coop, Su/Re 4,860.51

Fast Mart, Su 10.52

Fastenal, Su/Re 503.16

Firhouse Five, Se 25.00

GE Capital, Eq 10,711.61

General Fire, Bu 1,540.06

Gerdes, Jared, Su 91.78

Global Eq., Su 438.95

Good Life Mag., Se 24.00

HD Supp., Re 1,509.84

Hamilton Eq., Su 611.12

Heartspun Flowers, Su 50.00

Helmink Printing, Su 522.00

Hemphill Elec., Re 125.00

Husker Elec., Su 724.53

Hydraulic Eq., Re 4,149.16

Interstate Batt., su 64.80

Jackson Serv., Se 107.42

jacobsen Rock, Su 6,779.64

Jurchen, John Se 25.00

Kriz-Davis, Su 3,116.27

Last Mile Network, Se 140.00

Lee's Ref., Re 220.26

Lincoln Winwater, Re 154.83

Marlin's Plbg., Re 32.10

Matheson Tri-Gas, Se 112.51

Mattson Ricketts Law, Se 4,522.59

McCoy, Nan, Releaf 75.00

Memorial Health, Se 1,185.00

Men's Health Mag., Se 24.97

Menards, Su 69.90

Merle's Garden, Su/Gu 1,709.69

Meyer Auto, Re 80.36

Mid-Amer. Benefits, Se 2,404.50

Midland Scientific, Se 2,173.97

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 20 / 177



 

 

 

Midwest Auto Parts, Re/Su 718.05

Midwest Automotive, Re 1,699.70

Midwest Labs, Se 705.09

Midwest Serv., Su 1,737.85

Mike's Market, Su 18.66

Moody, John, Se 110.00

Morse, Laurie, Class 60.00

Municipal Supp. NE, Su 220.28

NE Equip., Re 46.15

NE Health, Se 315.00

NE Labor, SE 280.00

NE Mun. Power Pool, Se 325.00

NE Pub. Power, Se/Su 413,924.11

NE Sports, Su 215.93

Net-Tech, Su 5,952.02

Nieman's Port-A-Pot, Se 300.00

Nitzsche, Natalie, Refund 50.00

Northern Safety, Su 250.89

OCLC, Se 174.61

O'Reilly Auto, Re 166.37

Odeys, Su 420.00

One Call Concepts, Se 124.50

Orscheln, Su/Re 912.45

Otte, Donna, Mi 37.38

Pac 'N' Save, Su 113.45

Pankoke, Henry, Se 220.00

Penas, Logan, Se 45.00

Plains Eq., Re 52.98

Plunkett's Pest, Se 157.32

Precision Tool, Re 34.00

Quill, Su 155.11

Quinn, Jeff, Se 275.00

Reader's Digest, Se 17.98

Rumery Lawn, Re 119.32

Sack Lumber, Su 5.99

Sam's Club, Su 1,028.86

Mrs. Science, Se 170.00

Sew. Airport Auth., Agreement 300.00

Sew. Co. Clerk, Se 60.00

Sew. Co. Independent, Se 946.03

Sew. Co. PPD, Se 1,216.70

Sew. Co. Treasurer, Se 14,959.33

Seward Lumber, Su/Re 596.05

Sew. Schools, Fines 60.00

Sleuth Software, Se 4,216.80

St PJ Supp., Su 131.25

Supplyworks, Su 317.39

Law Enf. Coord., Ex 120.00

US Postal, Se 144.00

Verizon, Se 142.51

Visa 484.05

  Wal-Mart, Su 119.27

  Amazon.com, Se 99.00

  Gotprint.com, Se 265.78

White, Sarah, Se 200.00

Windstream NE, Se 2,702.19

TOTAL 766,247.82

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 21 / 177



 

 

 


 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 22 / 177



 

 

 


 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 23 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 24 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 25 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 26 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 27 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 28 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 29 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G3

CONFIRMATION OF MAYOR'S APPOINTMENTS - Mayor 
Eickmeier
Citizen Advisory Review Committee - 3 Yr Term - Reappoint Justin Hartman, Resignation Byron Winter

Cemetery Board - 3-Yr Term - Reappoint Roger Glawatz & Greg Zabka

Administrative Report: Following review and discussion, a motion to confirm the Mayor's 
appointments would be in order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 30 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G4

PUBLIC HEARING - 7:00 P.M. - CONSIDERATION OF TIF 
APPLICATION OF TWO CREEKS HOLDING - TIF Attorney, 
Andrew Willis
Presentation and Review of TIF Application

Presentation and Review of Cost-Benefit Analysis

Presentation and Review of Amendment to Redevelopment Plan

Presentation and Review of Redevelopment Agreement

Consideration of Resolution approving the Redevelopment Plan Amendment

Consideration of a Resolution Approving the Redevelopment Agreement and the Issuance of TIF 
Indebtedness for the Redevelopment Project

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 31 / 177



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

 Public notice is hereby given by the Planning Commission of the City of 
Seward, Nebraska, that a public hearing will be held at 7:30 p.m. on June 8, 

2015, at the Seward Municipal Building, 142 North 7th Street, Seward, 
Nebraska.   

Public notice is hereby also given by the Mayor and City Council of the 

City of Seward, Nebraska, that a public hearing will be held at 7:00 p.m. on 
June 16, 2015, at the Seward Municipal Building, 142 North 7th Street, 
Seward, Nebraska. 

The purpose of both hearings is to obtain public comment prior to the 
review and consideration of a proposed amendment to the redevelopment plan 

for the City of Seward, including a specific redevelopment project. 
 The property which is the subject of this notice and of the public hearing 
is generally located at Highway 34 and South 12th Street in Seward, and is 

legally described as follows: 
 

Lots 10-12, Block 45, H M & R Addition, and the West 35 
feet of the adjacent vacated 12th Street and the adjacent 
vacated South Street, Seward County, Nebraska. 

 
 All interested parties shall be afforded at each public hearing a 
reasonable opportunity to express their views regarding the proposed 

redevelopment plan amendment.  
 /s/Bonnie Otte, City Clerk 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Publish one time on May 20, 2015 and one time on May 27, 2015 

One Proof of Publication 
 
 

 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 32 / 177



262

242

232

220

204

1234

1221

1215

1151

1143

1140

1137

1135

1121

1118

80

45

80

80

80

80

HWY 34  

13
TH

 S
T

ELM ST

MAIN ST

13TH ST

12TH ST

12
TH

 S
T

SOUTH ST

I 0 75 15037.5 Feet
12th & Hwy 34

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 33 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 34 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 35 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 36 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 37 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 38 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 39 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 40 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 41 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 42 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 43 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 44 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 45 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 46 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 47 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 48 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 49 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 50 / 177



COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 
TWO CREEKS HOLDINGS, LLC 

May, 2015 
 

COST-BENEFIT ANALYSIS 
(Pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 18-2113) 

 
 The cost-benefit analysis for the above referenced project, as described on the 
attached Exhibit A, which will utilize funds authorized by Neb. Rev. Stat. §18-2147, 
can be summarized as follows: 
 
 1. Tax shifts resulting from the approval of the use of funds pursuant 
to Section 18-2147: 
 

 a. Estimate Base Project Area Valuation: $13,871 
 b. Projected Completed Project Assessed Valuation: $336,600 
 c. Projected Tax Increment Base (b. minus a.): $322,729 
 d. Estimated Tax Levy: 1.735900 
 e. Annual Projected Tax Shift: $5,602 
 

Note: The Projected Tax shift is based on assumed values and levy rates; actual 

amounts and rates will vary from those assumptions, and it is understood that the 

actual tax shift may vary materially from the projected amount.  
 
 2. Public infrastructure and community public service needs impacts 
and local tax impacts arising from the approval of the redevelopment project: 
 

 a. Public infrastructure improvements and impacts: 
 

The Project anticipates expenditures of approximately $360,000 
for construction and installation of the Project and related and ancillary 
improvements.  It is proposed that approximately $55,000 of these 
expenditures will be financed with the proceeds of tax increment financing 
indebtedness, with the remaining balance to be paid by the Redeveloper.  The 
projected sources and uses of the TIF indebtedness, which will be refined in the 
Redevelopment Agreement for this Project, are set forth in the TIF Sources and 
Uses chart on the attached Exhibit B.  All expenditures financed by tax 
increment financing Indebtedness shall be eligible public expenditures.  It is 
not anticipated that the Project will have a material adverse impact on existing 
public infrastructure.   

 
  b. Local Tax impacts (in addition to impacts of Tax Shifts described 

above): 
  

The Project will create material tax and other public revenue for 
the City and other local taxing jurisdictions.  While the use of tax increment 
financing will defer receipt of a majority of new ad valorem real property taxes 
generated by the Project, it is intended to create a long term benefit and 
substantial increase in property taxes to the City and other local taxing 
jurisdictions.  The Project should also generate immediate tax growth for the 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 51 / 177



 2 

City.  The Project will include an amount of personal property that will be on 
the property tax rolls upon its acquisition and installation.  Additionally, the 
City should realize revenue from sales tax paid by customers for goods sold at 
the retail store. 

 
 3. Impacts on employers and employees of firms locating or expanding 
within the boundaries of the area of the redevelopment project: 
 

  Redeveloper has a commitment to lease the building to St. PJ Supply, 
Inc. (“Tenant”).  Tenant’s operations are currently located at 1222 Elm Street in 
Seward, but Tenant needs to expand beyond its current 1,806 square foot 
facility.  The Project will allow Tenant to move to the Project Site in the 
Redevelopment Area rather than potentially relocating to another location 
outside the Redevelopment Area or the City.  It is beneficial for the City to 
retain its growing businesses, and this Project will facilitate the retention of 
Tenant and further the redevelopment of the Redevelopment Area.  It is not 
anticipated that the Project will have a material adverse impact on employers 
and employees of firms locating or expanding within the boundaries of the area 
of the redevelopment project.     

 
 4. Impacts on other employers and employees within the City and the 
immediate area that is located outside of the boundaries of the area of the 
redevelopment project: 
 

  The Project should not have a material impact on private sector 
businesses in and around the area outside the boundaries of the 
redevelopment project. The Project is not anticipated to impose a burden or 
have a negative impact on other local area employers.  The Project will relocate 
an existing business so it may expand its operations and remain in the City.  
While this Project will create a vacancy in the Redevelopment Area, it is a 
vacancy that would be created regardless, since the Tenant needed to move out 
and expand.  This vacancy can be seen as a positive, since it will free up an 
existing facility for a new business opportunity and potential further 
redevelopment. 

 
5. Other impacts determined by the agency to be relevant to the 

consideration of costs and benefits arising from the redevelopment project: 
 

The Project is anticipated to create 2 to 3 full time jobs in the City in the 
next one to three years.  The Tenant has been steadily growing and has created 
seven new jobs since 2008.  The Redeveloper is also planning energy efficiency 
upgrades that should positively affect its impact on community resources and 
the environment.  The Project will include landscaping to the Site which will 
enhance the aesthetics of the Highway 34 corridor.  Finally, the Project will 
increase the number of available public parking spaces for weekends and 
holidays, which has been a continuing goal of the CRA. 

 
There are no other material impacts determined by the agency relevant 

to the consideration of the cost of benefits arising from the Project. 
 
 6. Cost Benefit Analysis Conclusion: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 52 / 177



 3 

 
Based upon the findings presented in this cost benefit analysis, the 

benefits outweigh the costs of the proposed Project. 
 
 Approved by the Community Redevelopment Authority, City of Seward this ____ 
day of May, 2015. 
 
 ____________________________________ 
       E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 
 
_____________________________________ 
Bonnie Otte, Secretary 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 53 / 177



 Exhibit A 

EXHIBIT A  
 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
 

The Project will consist of the construction of an approximately 4,675 square 
foot commercial retail and warehouse facility, public parking improvements, and other 
associated improvements on the following real estate: 

 
Lots 10-12, Block 45, H M & R Addition, and the West 35 feet of the 
adjacent vacated 12th Street and the adjacent vacated South Street, 
Seward County, Nebraska. 

 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 54 / 177



 Exhibit B 

EXHIBIT B  
 

PROJECTED TIF SOURCES AND USES 

1.  TIF SOURCES 
   

 
Assumptions: Tax Levy 1.735900 

 

  
Interest Rate 5.5% 

 

  
Number of years 15 

 

     

 

Property Value 
Assumptions: 

 
Assessed Value Estimated Taxes 

  
Pre-Project $13,871 $241 

  
Completed Project $336,600 $5,843 

  
Difference $322,729 $5,602 

     

 
TIF Calculations: Annual TIF Amount $5,602 

 

  
Total TIF Amount $84,034 

 

  
Loan Amount $56,720  

 

     

  
less 3% Admin Fee ($1,702) 

 

  
Total TIF Available $55,019  

 

     

     2. TIF USES Cost of Issuance TBD 
 

  
Site Acquisition $30,000 

 

  
Site Preparation & Retaining Wall $11,775 

 

  
Utility Improvements $8,300 

 

  

Public Parking Improvements $35,100 
 

  
Total $85,175 

 

     

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4816-5486-1347, v.  1 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 55 / 177



1 
 

AMENDMENT TO THE REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 
OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 
(TWO CREEKS HOLDINGS PROJECT) 

 
 The City of Seward, Nebraska (“City”) has undertaken a plan of 

redevelopment within the community pursuant to the adoption of the 
Redevelopment Plan for a certain redevelopment area in the City of Seward, as 

amended (the “Redevelopment Plan”).  The Redevelopment Plan was approved by 
the City Council of the City as of November 15, 2011.  The Redevelopment Plan 

serves as a guide for the implementation of redevelopment activities within certain 
areas of the City, as set forth in the Redevelopment Plan. 

 
 Pursuant to the Nebraska Community Development Law codified at Neb. 

Rev. Stat.  §§ 18-2101 through 18-2154 (the “Act”), the City created the 
Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Seward (“CRA”), which has 

administered the Redevelopment Plan for the City.  
 

 The purpose of this Plan Amendment is to identify specific property within 
the redevelopment area that is in need of redevelopment to cause the removal of 

blight and substandard conditions identified as the site located in the in the City 
of Seward, Nebraska, and legally described on the attached and incorporated 

Exhibit “A” (the “Site”).   
 

Description of the Project 
 

 The project under consideration will consist of the construction of an 
approximately 4,675 square foot retail autobody facility and associated 

improvements on the Site (the “Project”).   
 

Project 
 

 The Site is in need of redevelopment.  The CRA has considered whether 
redevelopment of the Site will conform to the general plan and the coordinated, 

adjusted, and harmonious development of the City and its environs.  In this 
consideration, the CRA finds that such a redevelopment of the Site will promote 

the health, safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity, and the general welfare 
of the community including, among other things, the promotion of safety from fire, 

the promotion of the healthful and convenient distribution of population, the 
promotion of sound design and arrangement, the wise and efficient expenditure of 

public funds, and the prevention of the recurrence of unsanitary and unsafe 
dwelling accommodations or conditions of blight.  The blighted condition of the 

Site and the Redevelopment Area has contributed to its inability to attract 
businesses and/or development.  In order to support private development, the Site 

and the Redevelopment Area are in need of renovation and development.   
 

The Site is currently vacant.  Significant site preparation must be 
undertaken before the Site can be developed. Because of the condition of the 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 56 / 177



2 
 

property and the upfront costs to remove the blighted and substandard conditions 
from the property, the Project is not feasible without the use of tax increment 

financing.  The site acquisition required site preparation, stabilization and the 
construction of a retaining wall, extension of utilities, public parking facilities, and 

other aspects of the Project are eligible expenditures under the Act.  The 
redevelopment of the Site pursuant to this Plan Amendment will include the 

construction of a new commercial autobody facility and other enhancements of the 
Project Site and Redevelopment Area.  The project is anticipated to eliminate the 

current blight and substandard conditions of the Site and will further the 
purposes of the Act in conformity with the Redevelopment Plan.   

 
 Two Creeks Holdings, LLC (the “Redeveloper”), have submitted a proposal for 

the redevelopment of the Site to include the construction of new commercial 
autobody facility and associated improvements.  Redeveloper will pay the costs of 

the private improvements, including the construction of the building.  As part of 
the Project, the CRA shall capture available tax increment from the Site to assist in 

payment for the public improvements listed as eligible expenditures under the Act 
in the Redevelopment Area.  Such public improvements may include, but are not 

limited to: site acquisition, site preparation, utility improvements, public parking 
improvements, energy efficiency enhancements, and other improvements deemed 

feasible and necessary in support of the public health, safety, and welfare which 
qualify as eligible expenditures for public improvements under the Act. 

 
 As described above, the project envisions the capture of the incremental 

taxes created by the Project on the Site to pay for those eligible expenditures as set 
forth in the Act.  Attached as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference 

is a consideration of the statutory elements under the Nebraska Community 
Development Law. 

 
Approved by the Community Redevelopment Authority, City of Seward, on 

this ____ day of May, 2015. 
 

_______________________________ 
E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 

 
________________________________ 

Bonnie Otte, Secretary 
 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 57 / 177



Exhibit A 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Legal Description of the Site 

 
The property is located at Highway 34 and South 12th Street and is legally 

described as follows: 

 
Lots 10-12, Block 45, H M & R Addition, and the West 35 feet of the 

adjacent vacated 12th Street and the adjacent vacated South Street, 
Seward County, Nebraska. 

 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 58 / 177



Exhibit B 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
Statutory Elements 

 
A. Property Acquisition, Demolition and Disposal 

 
 No public acquisition of private property, relocation of families or 

businesses, or the sale of property is necessary to accomplish the Project.  The 
Redeveloper has a contractual right to purchase the property from the current 

owner, and the land will be purchased by Redeveloper. 
 

B. Population Density 
 

 The proposed development at the project site is the construction of a 
commercial retail and warehouse facility which will not significantly affect 

population density in the project area. 
 

C. Land Coverage 
 

 The Project will consist of constructing a commercial building consisting of 
retail, warehouse, and office space with approximately 4,675 square feet. The 

Project will also include an approximately 7,000 square foot parking lot.  The 
Project Site is approximately 25,965 square feet.  The Project will meet the 

applicable land-coverage ratios and zoning requirements as required by the City of 
Seward. 

 
D. Traffic Flow, Street Layouts, and Street Grades 

 
 The Project Site is located on Highway 34.  No adverse impacts are 

anticipated with respect to traffic flow, street layouts, and street grades.   
 

E. Parking 
 

 The construction of the Project will include construction of all parking 
necessary to satisfy the parking requirements set forth in the applicable zoning 

district.  The Project will include an approximately 7,000 square foot parking lot 
subject to a public parking license.   

 
F. Zoning, Building Code, and Ordinances 

 
 The Site is located in the Urban Corridor zoning district.  The building 

constructed as part of the Project will be classified as a Business Support Services 
Building, which is a permitted use in the applicable zoning district.  No additional 

zoning, building code, or ordinance changes will be necessary for the Project.   
 

 

 
4851-3416-7587, v.  1 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 59 / 177



1 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
(Two Creeks Holdings Project) 

 
 This Redevelopment Agreement is made and entered into as of the ____ day of 

June, 2015, by and between the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 
Seward, Nebraska (“CRA”) and Two Creeks Holdings, LLC, a Nebraska limited liability 

company (“Redeveloper”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. The CRA is a duly organized and existing community redevelopment authority, 
a body politic and corporate under the laws of the State of Nebraska, with lawful 

power and authority to enter into this Redevelopment Agreement. 
 

B. The City of Seward, in furtherance of the purposes and pursuant to the 
provisions of Article VIII, Section 12 of the Nebraska Constitution and Neb. Rev. Stat. 

§§ 18-2101 to 18-2154, as amended (collectively the “Act”), has adopted a 
Redevelopment Plan for a blighted and substandard area designated by the City, 

including the Redevelopment Area. 
 

C. Redeveloper has contracted to purchase the Project Site which is located in the 
Redevelopment Area. 

 
D. Redeveloper submitted a redevelopment project proposal to redevelop the 

Project Site.   
 

E. The CRA has approved the Redeveloper’s proposed redevelopment project, 
including the utilization of tax-increment financing to provide for the construction of 

the eligible public improvements defined in this Redevelopment Agreement. 
 

F. CRA and Redeveloper desire to enter into this Redevelopment Agreement for 
redevelopment of the Project Site. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual 

covenants and agreements herein set forth, CRA and Redeveloper do hereby 
covenant, agree and bind themselves as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 
 

Section 1.01 Terms Defined in this Redevelopment Agreement. 
 

 Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the 
following meanings for all purposes of this Redevelopment Agreement, such 

definitions to be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms and 
masculine, feminine and neuter gender of any of the terms defined: 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 60 / 177



 

 
2 

 A. “Act” means Article VIII, Section 12 of the Nebraska Constitution, 
Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 18-2101 through 18-2154, as amended, and acts amendatory 

thereof and supplemental thereto. 
 

 B. “City” means the City of Seward, Nebraska. 
 

 C. “County” means Seward County, Nebraska. 
 

 D. “CRA” means Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 
Seward, Nebraska. 

 
 E. “Effective Date” means January 1, 2016. 

 
 F. “Eligible Project Costs” means only costs or expenses incurred by 

Redeveloper for Public Improvements that are eligible for reimbursement under the 
Act. 

 
 G. “Minimum Project Valuation” means the amount of Three Hundred 

Thirty Six Thousand Six Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($336,600.00). 
 

 H. “Private Improvements” means all the private improvements to be 
constructed on the Project Site as more particularly described on Exhibit “A”. 

 
I. “Project” means the work undertaken in the Redevelopment Area 

which is necessary or incidental to the proper clearance, development, or 
redevelopment of blighted and substandard conditions in the Redevelopment Area, 

which shall include improvements to the Project Site and adjacent thereto, 
including the Private Improvements and Public Improvements defined herein and 

described on Exhibit “A” attached and incorporated by this reference. 
 

 J. “Project Completion Date” means December 31, 2015. 
 

K. “Project Site” means all that certain real property situated in the City 
of Seward, Seward County, Nebraska, more particularly described on Exhibit “A”. 

 
 L. “Public Improvements” shall include all the public improvements 

more particularly described on Exhibit “A” which are eligible improvements under 
the Act.  The costs of the Public Improvements include the debt service payments 

of the TIF Indebtedness. 
 

 M. “Redeveloper” means Two Creeks Holdings, LLC, a Nebraska limited 
liability company. 

 
 N. “Redevelopment Agreement” means this Redevelopment Agreement 

between the CRA and Redeveloper with respect to the Project. 
 

 O. “Redevelopment Area” means the Redevelopment Area #1 that is set 
forth in the Redevelopment Plan. 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 61 / 177



 

 
3 

 
 P. “Redevelopment Plan” means the Redevelopment Plan for the 

Redevelopment Area by the CRA and approved by the City pursuant to the Act, as 
amended from time to time. 

 
 Q. “Tax Increment” means incremental ad valorem taxes generated by 

the Project which are allocated to and paid to the CRA pursuant to the Act, as 
more particularly described in Section 3.02 of this Redevelopment Agreement. 

 
 R. “TIF Indebtedness” means any bonds, notes, loans and advances of 

money or other indebtedness, including interest thereon, issued by the CRA or the 
City secured in whole or in part by the Tax Increment. 

 
Section 1.02 Construction and Interpretation. 

 
 The provisions of this Redevelopment Agreement shall be construed and 

interpreted in accordance with the following provisions: 
 

 (a) This Redevelopment Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance 
with and governed by the laws of the State of Nebraska, including the Act. 

 
 (b) Wherever in this Redevelopment Agreement it is provided that any 

person may do or perform any act or thing the word “may” shall be deemed 
permissive and not mandatory and it shall be construed that such person shall 

have the right, but shall not be obligated, to do and perform any such act or thing. 
 

 (c) The phrase “at any time” shall be construed as meaning “at any time 
or from time to time.” 

 
 (d) The word “including” shall be construed as meaning “including, but 

not limited to.” 
 

 (e) The words “will” and “shall” shall each be construed as mandatory. 
 

 (f) The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder,” “hereinafter” and words of 
similar import shall refer to the Redevelopment Agreement as a whole rather than 

to any particular paragraph, section or subsection, unless the context specifically 
refers thereto. 

 
 (g) Forms of words in the singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter 

shall be construed to include the other forms as the context may require. 
 

 (h) The captions to the sections of this Redevelopment Agreement are for 
convenience only and shall not be deemed part of the text of the respective 

sections and shall not vary by implication or otherwise any of the provisions 
hereof. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 62 / 177



 

 
4 

ARTICLE II 
REPRESENTATIONS 

 
Section 2.01 Representations by the CRA. 

 
 The CRA makes the following representations and findings: 

 
(a)  The CRA is a duly organized and validly existing community 

redevelopment authority under the Act. 
 

(b) The CRA deems it to be in the public interest and in furtherance of 
the purposes of the Act to accept the proposal submitted by Redeveloper for the 

redevelopment of the Project Site as specified herein. 
 

(c) The Project will achieve the public purposes of the Act by, among 
other things, increasing employment, increasing the tax base, and lessening 

blighted and substandard conditions in the Redevelopment Area. 
 

Section 2.02 Representations of Redeveloper. 
 

 Redeveloper makes the following representations and findings: 
 

 (a) Redeveloper is a Nebraska limited liability company, having the power 
to enter into this Redevelopment Agreement and perform all obligations contained 

herein and by proper action has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this 
Redevelopment Agreement. 

 
 (b) The execution and delivery of the Redevelopment Agreement and the 

consummation of the transactions therein contemplated will not conflict with or 
constitute a breach of or default under any bond, debenture, note or other 

evidence of indebtedness or any contract, loan agreement or lease to which 
Redeveloper is a party or by which it is bound, or result in the creation or 

imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance of any nature upon any of the 
property or assets of Redeveloper contrary to the terms of any instrument or 

agreement. 
 

 (c) There is no litigation pending or to the best of its knowledge 
threatened against Redeveloper affecting its ability to carry out the acquisition, 

construction, equipping and furnishing of the Project or the carrying into effect of 
this Redevelopment Agreement or, except as disclosed in writing to the CRA, as to 

any other matter materially affecting the ability of Redeveloper to perform its 
obligations hereunder. 

 
 (d) Redeveloper owns or has contracted to purchase the Project Site, in 

fee simple and free from any liens, encumbrances, or restrictions which would 
prevent the performance of this Agreement by Redeveloper. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 63 / 177



 

 
5 

ARTICLE III 
OBLIGATIONS OF THE CRA AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

 
Section 3.01 Capture of Tax Increment. 

 
 Subject to the contingencies described below and to all of the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, commencing for the tax year of the Effective Date 
and continuing thereafter, the CRA shall capture the Tax Increment from the 

Private Improvements pursuant to the Nebraska Community Development Law.  
The CRA shall divide the ad valorem tax and capture the Tax Increment generated 

by the Project Site for a total period of not to exceed fifteen (15) years after the 
Private Improvements have been included in the assessed valuation of the Project 

Site and is generating the Tax Increment subject to capture by the CRA.  The 
effective date of this provision shall be the Effective Date.  The CRA shall file with 

the County Assessor the “Notice to Divide Taxes” on or prior to August 1st in the 
year of the Effective Date. 

 
Section 3.02 Tax Increment.   

 
 The term Tax Increment shall mean, in accordance with Neb. Rev. 

Stat. § 18-2147 of the Nebraska Community Development Law, the difference 
between the ad valorem tax which is produced by the tax levy (fixed each year by 

the County Board of Equalization) for the Project Site before the completion of the 
construction of the Private Improvements and the ad valorem tax which is 

produced by the tax levy for the Project Site after completion of construction of the 
Private Improvements as part of the Project.  For this Project, the anticipated Tax 

Increment is the difference between the projected taxes payable for 2016 (after 
construction completion) and the taxes payable for 2015 (before completion of 

construction), as more particularly set forth on Exhibit “B”.   
 

Section 3.03 Issuance of TIF Indebtedness.   
 

(a) On or after thirty (30) days following the approval and execution of 
this Agreement, the CRA shall incur or issue Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness in the 

estimated amount of Fifty Six Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty and No/100 
Dollars ($56,720.00), as calculated on the attached and incorporated Exhibit “B”, 

to be purchased by the Redeveloper or a lender of the Redeveloper.  The 
Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness, which shall be in the form of a TIF Promissory Note, 

shall not be a general obligation of the CRA or City which shall issue such Note 
solely as a conduit.  The Redeveloper shall locate a lender or other entity to acquire 

and fund the acquisition of the TIF Note for this Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness.  
The Redeveloper Indebtedness shall be secured by a pledge or assignment of the 

Tax Increment or otherwise secured by the Redeveloper as required by the lender. 
 

(b) The parties acknowledge that there are additional eligible public 
improvements within the Redevelopment Area that would benefit the Project and 

the City including, but not limited to, additional street and infrastructure 
improvements, utility improvements, public space enhancements, public facility 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 64 / 177



 

 
6 

improvements, landscaping, the implementation and financing of a CRA program 
of voluntary or compulsory repair, rehabilitation, or demolition of buildings and 

other improvements in accordance with the Redevelopment Plan, and the removal 
of blighted and substandard conditions, that are being included in the Project as 

CRA Improvements.  If the Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness is fully repaid prior to the 
end of the fifteen (15) year tax increment capture period, the CRA shall have the 

right to incur or issue CRA TIF Indebtedness in an amount reasonably determined 
by the CRA to be used for the construction and completion of the CRA 

Improvements.  The CRA TIF Indebtedness may be issued in the form of a CRA TIF 
promissory note, loan, advance of money, or any form of indebtedness incurred by 

the CRA, and the CRA shall capture any remaining Tax Increment to pay the CRA 
TIF Indebtedness in the Redevelopment Area.  The CRA TIF Indebtedness shall in 

no case be a general obligation of the CRA or City. 
 

Section 3.04  Use of TIF Indebtedness. 
 

(a) CRA will collect the Tax Increment and use said Tax Increment to 
pay debt service on the TIF Indebtedness incurred as provided in Section 3.03 

of this Redevelopment Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the amount of 
the Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness that the CRA agrees to service and repay with 

the Tax Increment shall not exceed the amount of the Eligible Project Costs 
certified pursuant to Section 4.02. In addition, the CRA shall retain an amount 

sufficient to pay its reasonable and necessary cost of issuance, including 
attorney fees, and a CRA administration fee in the amount of three percent (3%) 

of the Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness.  The Tax Increment, less the CRA’s costs 
set forth above, shall be paid pursuant to the terms and schedules of any TIF 

Promissory Note or TIF resolution issued by the CRA relating to this Project. 
 

(b) Upon the repayment in full of the Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness, the 
CRA shall retain the Tax Increment to pay the CRA TIF Indebtedness, if the CRA 

issues or incurs any CRA TIF Indebtedness pursuant to Section 3.03(b).  The CRA 
shall not be obligated to issue any CRA TIF Indebtedness. 

 
Section 3.05 Creation of Fund. 

 
CRA will create a special fund to collect and hold the receipts of the Tax 

Increment. Such special fund shall be used for no purpose other than to: (1) 
pay TIF Indebtedness issued pursuant to Section 3.03 above; and (2) hold any 

Tax Increment until such time as the CRA commences the public improvements 
and incurs the CRA TIF Indebtedness described in Section 3.03(b). 

 
Section 3.06 Projected TIF Sources and Uses. 

 
In addition to the Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness calculation formula set 

forth on Exhibit “B”, Redeveloper’s anticipated TIF sources and eligible uses are 
attached and incorporated for the parties’ reference as Exhibit “C.”   

 
ARTICLE IV 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 65 / 177



 

 
7 

OBLIGATIONS OF REDEVELOPER 
 

Section 4.01 Construction of Project; Insurance. 
 

 (a) Redeveloper will complete the Public Improvements and the Private 
Improvements as described on Exhibit “A” and install all equipment necessary to 

operate the Public Improvements and the Private Improvements no later than the 
Project Completion Date.  Redeveloper shall be solely responsible for obtaining all 

permits and approvals necessary to acquire, construct and equip the Public 
Improvements and the Private Improvements.  Until construction of the Public 

Improvements and the Private Improvements has been completed, Redeveloper 
shall make reports in such detail and at such times as may be reasonably 

requested by the CRA as to the actual progress of Redeveloper with respect to 
construction of the Public Improvements and the Private Improvements.  Promptly 

after completion by Redeveloper of the Public Improvements and the Private 
Improvements, Redeveloper shall furnish to the CRA a Certificate of Completion in 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and incorporated by this reference.  When 
signed and accepted by the CRA, the certification by Redeveloper shall be a 

conclusive determination of satisfaction of the agreements and covenants in this 
Redevelopment Agreement with respect to the obligations of Redeveloper to 

construct the Public Improvements and the Private Improvements. 
 

 (b) Any contractor chosen by Redeveloper or Redeveloper itself shall be 
required to obtain and keep in force at all times until completion of construction, 

policies of insurance including coverage for contractors’ general liability and 
completed operations (provided that Redeveloper may self-insure in lieu of 

obtaining and keeping in force such policy of insurance) and a penal bond as 
required by the Act.  Redeveloper shall be named as an additional insured.  Any 

contractor chosen by Redeveloper or Redeveloper itself, as an owner, shall be 
required to purchase and maintain property insurance upon the Project to the full 

insurable value thereof (provided that Redeveloper may self-insure in lieu of 
obtaining and keeping in force such policy of insurance). This insurance shall 

insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage and shall include “special 
causes of loss” insurance for physical loss or damage.  

 
 (c) Redeveloper shall have no obligation to construct or complete any 

CRA improvements that will be constructed with the CRA TIF Indebtedness, 
pursuant to Section 3.03(b) of this Redevelopment Agreement. 

 
Section 4.02  Cost Certification. 

 
Redeveloper shall submit to CRA a certification of Eligible Project Costs, 

after expenditure of such project costs. Redeveloper may, at its option, submit 
one or more partial Eligible Project Costs Certifications prior to expenditure of 

all Eligible Project Costs providing certification of receipt of billings for work in 
progress. All Eligible Project Costs Certifications shall be subject to review and 

approval by the CRA. Determinations by the CRA whether costs included in the 
Eligible Project Costs Certification are properly included in Eligible Project 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 66 / 177



 

 
8 

Costs as defined in this Agreement shall be made in its sole discretion and 
shall be conclusive and binding on Redeveloper. 

 
Section 4.03 No Discrimination. 

 
 Redeveloper agrees and covenants for itself, its successors and assigns that 

as long as this Redevelopment Agreement is outstanding, it will not discriminate 
against any person or group of persons on account of race, sex, color, religion, 

national origin, ancestry, disability, marital status or receipt of public assistance 
in connection with the Project.  Redeveloper, for itself and its successors and 

assigns, agrees that during the construction of the Project, Redeveloper will not 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 

color, religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, disability, marital status or receipt of 
public assistance.  Redeveloper will comply with all applicable federal, state and 

local laws related to the Project. 
 

Section 4.04 Pay Real Estate Taxes. 
 

(a) Redeveloper intends to create a taxable real property valuation of the 
Project and Project Site of not less than the Minimum Project Valuation no later 

than the Effective Date.  During the period of this Agreement, Redeveloper, its 
successors and assigns, will: (1) not protest a real estate property valuation of the 

Project and Project Site to a sum less than or equal to the Minimum Project 
Valuation; and (2) not convey the Project Site or structures thereon to any entity 

which would be exempt from the payment of real estate taxes or cause the 
nonpayment of such real estate taxes. 

 
(b) If, during the period of this Agreement, the Project Site is assessed at 

less than the Minimum Project Valuation, Redeveloper shall either: (1) successfully 
protest the valuation of the Project Site upwards such that the valuation is equal 

to or greater than the Minimum Project Valuation; or (2) make a payment in lieu of 
taxes in the amount the anticipated Tax Increment, as defined in Exhibit “B”, 

exceeds the actual Tax Increment. 
 

Section 4.05 Parking Lot License.  Redeveloper shall grant to the City a 
Parking Lot License in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “E”.  The grant of said 

license shall be at no cost to the City. 
 

Section 4.06 No Assignment or Conveyance. 
 

 Redeveloper shall not convey, assign or transfer the Project Site or any 
interest therein prior to the termination of the 15 year period commencing on the 

Effective Date specified in Section 3.01 hereof without the prior written consent of 
the CRA, which shall not be unreasonably withheld and which the CRA may make 

subject to any terms or conditions it reasonably deems appropriate, except for the 
following conveyance, which shall be permitted without consent of the CRA: 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 67 / 177



 

 
9 

(a) any conveyance as security for indebtedness (i) previously incurred by 
Redeveloper or incurred by Redeveloper after the effective date for Project costs or 

any subsequent physical improvements to the premises with the outstanding 
principal amount of all such indebtedness (whether incurred prior to or after the 

effective date of this Agreement) secured by the Project Site which shall have lien 
priority over the obligations of Redeveloper pursuant to this Redevelopment 

Agreement, or (ii) any additional or subsequent conveyance as security for 
indebtedness incurred by Redeveloper for Project costs or any subsequent physical 

improvements to the premises provided that any such conveyance shall be subject 
to the obligations of Redeveloper pursuant to this Redevelopment Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE V 

FINANCING PROJECT; ENCUMBRANCES 
 

Section 5.01 Financing. 
 

 (a) Redeveloper shall pay all costs for the construction of the Private 
Improvements and the Public Improvements.  Redeveloper shall be responsible for 

arranging all necessary financing for the construction of the Public Improvements 
and Private Improvements, including, with respect to the Public Improvements, the 

TIF Indebtedness.  
 

 (b) Notwithstanding Redeveloper’s obligation above, the CRA shall pay 
the cost of and shall be responsible for arranging all necessary financing for any 

CRA improvements that shall be constructed utilizing the CRA TIF Indebtedness, 
pursuant to Section 3.03(b) of this Redevelopment Agreement. 

 
Section 5.02 Encumbrances. 

 
 Redeveloper shall not create any lien, encumbrance or mortgage on the 

Project or the Project Site except, (a) encumbrances which secure indebtedness 
incurred to acquire, construct and equip the Project or for any other physical 

improvements to the Project Site, (b) easements and rights of entry granted by 
Redeveloper, (c) construction and materialman liens that may be filed in 

connection with the construction of the Private Improvements so long as any such 
lien is discharged or bonded within 90 days of completion of the Private 

Improvements, and (d) any other liens so long as any such lien is satisfied and 
released or substitute security is posted in lieu thereof within 90 days of 

Redeveloper receiving notice thereof. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
DEFAULT, REMEDIES; INDEMNIFICATION 

 
Section 6.01 General Remedies of the CRA and Redeveloper. 

 
 Subject to the further provisions of this Article VI, in the event of any failure 

to perform or breach of this Redevelopment Agreement or any of its terms or 
conditions, by either party hereto or any successor to such party, such party, or 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 68 / 177



 

 
10 

successor, shall, upon written notice from the other, proceed immediately to 
commence such actions as may be reasonably designed to cure or remedy such 

failure to perform or breach which cure or remedy shall be accomplished within a 
reasonable time by the diligent pursuit of corrective action.  In case such action is 

not taken, or diligently pursued, or the failure to perform or breach shall not be 
cured or remedied within a reasonable time, this Redevelopment Agreement shall 

be in default and the aggrieved party may institute such proceedings as may be 
necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under this Redevelopment Agreement, 

including, but not limited to, proceedings to compel specific performance by the 
party failing to perform or in breach of its obligations; provided that, in view of the 

additional remedies of the CRA set out in Section 6.02, the remedy of specific 
performance by Redeveloper shall not include or be construed to  include the 

covenant to build or construct the Private Improvements or Project. 
 

Section 6.02 Additional Remedies of the CRA. 
 

 In the event that: 
 

(a) Redeveloper, or successor in interest, shall fail to complete the 
construction of the Project on or before the Project Completion Date, or shall 

abandon construction work for any period of 120 days (not including any period 
covered pursuant to the terms of Section 6.04 below); 

 
(b) Redeveloper, or successor in interest, shall fail to pay real estate taxes 

or assessments on the Project Site or any part thereof when due, and such taxes 
or assessments or payments in lieu of taxes shall not have been paid, or provisions 

satisfactory to the CRA made for such payment within thirty (30) days following 
written notice from the CRA;  

 
(c) Redeveloper does not maintain an assessed valuation equal to or 

greater than the Minimum Project Valuation for the Project Site for the term of this 
Agreement and fails to satisfy the obligations of Section 4.04(b) of this Agreement; 

or 
 

(d) There is, in violation of Section 4.05 of this Redevelopment 
Agreement, transfer of the Project Site or any part thereof, and such failure or 

action by Redeveloper has not been cured within 30 days following written notice 
from the CRA,  

 
then Redeveloper shall be in default of this Redevelopment Agreement; and such 

failure to perform, breach or default is not cured in the period herein provided, the 
parties agree that the damages caused to the CRA would be difficult to determine 

with certainty.  To the extent that such failure results in the fact that the CRA is 
not able to capture the full amount of the anticipated Tax Increment contemplated 

hereunder, Redeveloper shall be obligated, on an annual basis, to remit the sum 
by which the anticipated Tax Increment exceeds the actual Tax Increment. 

 
Section 6.03  Remedies in the Event of Other Redeveloper Defaults. 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 69 / 177



 

 
11 

 
 In the event Redeveloper fails to perform any other provisions of this 

Redevelopment Agreement (other than those specific provisions contained in 
Section 6.02), and such failure has not been cured within 30 days following 

written notice from the CRA, then Redeveloper shall be in default.  In such an 
instance, the CRA may seek to enforce the terms of this Redevelopment Agreement 

or exercise any other remedies that may be provided in this Redevelopment 
Agreement or by applicable law; provided, however, that the default covered by this 

Section shall not give rise to a right or rescission or termination of this 
Redevelopment Agreement. 

 
Section 6.04  Limitation of Liability; Indemnification. 

 
 (a) Notwithstanding anything in this Article VI or this Redevelopment 

Agreement to the contrary, neither the CRA, City, nor their officers, directors, 
employees, agents or their governing bodies shall have any pecuniary obligation or 

monetary liability under this Redevelopment Agreement.  The obligation of the CRA 
on any TIF Indebtedness shall be limited solely to the Tax Increment pledged as 

security for such TIF Indebtedness.  Specifically, but without limitation, neither 
City nor the CRA shall be liable for any costs, liabilities, actions, demands, or 

damages for failure of any representations, warranties or obligations hereunder.  
Redeveloper releases the CRA and the City from and agrees that the CRA and the 

City shall not be liable for any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death 
of any person that may be occasioned by any cause whatsoever pertaining to the 

Private Improvements.   
 

 (b) Redeveloper agrees to indemnify, defend (at the CRA’s and/or the 
City’s option) and hold harmless the CRA, the City, their respective employees, 

officials, agents, representatives and volunteers from and against any and all 
liabilities, damages, injuries (including death), property damage (including loss of 

use), claims, liens, judgments, costs, expenses, suits, actions, or proceedings and 
reasonable attorney’s fees, and actual damages of any kind or nature, arising out 

of or in connection with any aspect of the acts, omissions, negligence or willful 
misconduct of Redeveloper, its employees, agents, officers, contractors or 

subcontractors, or Redeveloper’s performance or failure to perform under the 
terms and conditions of this Redevelopment Agreement.  Such indemnification, 

hold harmless and defense obligation shall exclude only such liability actions as 
arise directly out of acts, omissions, or the sole negligence or willful misconduct of 

the CRA or the City.  The indemnification and defense obligations set forth herein 
shall survive the termination of this Redevelopment Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 70 / 177



 

 
12 

Section 7.01  Memorandum.  
 

A Memorandum of this Redevelopment Agreement shall be recorded with the 
County Register of Deeds.  The form of the Memorandum is attached as Exhibit “F” 

and incorporated by this reference. 
 

Section 7.02  Governing Law. 
 

 This Redevelopment Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Nebraska, including the Act. 

 
Section 7.03  Binding Effect; Amendment. 

 
 This Redevelopment Agreement shall be binding on the parties hereto and 

their respective successors and assigns.  This Redevelopment Agreement shall run 
with the Project Site.  The Redevelopment Agreement shall not be amended except 

by a writing signed by the party to be bound. 
 

Section 7.04  No Agency or Partnership.  
 

This Redevelopment Agreement is not intended and shall not be construed 
to create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture or 

association as between the CRA and the City, on the one hand, and Redeveloper, 
on the other hand, nor between the CRA and the City, on the one hand, and any 

officer, employee, contractor or representative of Redeveloper, on the other hand.  
No joint employment is intended or created by this Redevelopment Agreement for 

any purpose.  Redeveloper agrees to so inform its employees, agents, contractors 
and subcontractors who are involved in the implementation of or construction 

under this Redevelopment Agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CRA and Redeveloper have signed this 
Redevelopment Agreement as of the date and year first above written. 

 
 

[Signature and Notary Pages to Follow] 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 71 / 177



 

 
13 

“CRA” 
 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA 
 

ATTEST: 
 

By:________________________________ By: ________________________________ 
 Bonnie Otte, Secretary  E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 

 
 

 
 

STATE OF NEBRASKA  ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF SEWARD ) 
 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of June, 
2015, by E. Thomas Spunaugle and Bonnie Otte, Chairman and Secretary 

respectively of the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Seward, 
Nebraska, a public body corporate and politic, on behalf of the Authority. 

 
 

              
       Notary Public 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 72 / 177



 

 
14 

 
 “REDEVELOPER” 

 
TWO CREEKS HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nebraska 

limited liability company    
    

  
      By:        

       Michael Lewis, President 
 

 
STATE OF NEBRASKA ) 

    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF SEWARD ) 

 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of June, 

2015, by Michael Lewis, President of Two Creeks Holdings, LLC, a Nebraska 
limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 

 
 

              
       Notary Public 

 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 73 / 177



Exhibit “A” 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
 

 The Project undertaken by Redeveloper on the Project Site, defined as the 

real estate legally described as: 
 

Lots 10-12, Block 45, H M & R Addition, and the West 35 feet 

of the adjacent vacated 12th Street and the adjacent vacated 
South Street, Seward County, Nebraska (the “Project Site”)  

 

shall consist of the following: 
 

(a) Private Improvements. The construction of an approximately 
4,675 square foot autobody retail and warehouse facility, and 

the associated improvements within the Redevelopment Area. 
 

(b) Public Improvements.  Site acquisition, site preparation and 
stabilization, utility improvements, public parking 

improvements, and other eligible public improvements on the 
Project Site and in the Redevelopment Area, which public 

improvements are eligible improvements under the Act 
pursuant to this Redevelopment Agreement; paid for, in part, 

by the Tax Increment created by the Private Improvements.   

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 74 / 177



Exhibit “B” 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

REDEVELOPER TIF INDEBTEDNESS 
 

1. Principal Amount.  The principal amount of the Redeveloper TIF 
Indebtedness shall be the amount, together with interest accruing thereon, 

which can be amortized by the Maturity Date, solely from the Tax Increment 
Revenues based upon the current aggregate ad valorem tax rate applicable 

to the Project Site multiplied by an assumed valuation of $336,600, subject 
to required debt service coverage, required reserve, and cost of issuance.  

 
2. Anticipated Tax Increment:  $5,602 annually.  The ad valorem taxes shall 

be divided for a period not to exceed 15 years, starting with the 2016 tax 
year (collected in 2017) through the 2030 tax year (collected in 2031). 

 
3. Payments.  Semi-annually with interest only until real estate taxes are fully 

collected for the tax year 2016 in an amount sufficient to fully amortize the 
TIF Indebtedness on or before the Maturity Date.   

 
4. Maturity Date.  On or before December 31, 2031. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 75 / 177



Exhibit “C” 
1 

 

EXHIBIT “C”  

 
PROJECTED TIF SOURCES AND USES 

 

1.  TIF SOURCES 
   

 
Assumptions: Tax Levy 1.735900 

 

  
Interest Rate 5.5% 

 

  
Number of years 15 

 

     

 

Property Value 
Assumptions: 

 
Assessed Value Estimated Taxes 

  
Pre-Project $13,871 $241 

  
Completed Project $336,600 $5,843 

  
Difference $322,729 $5,602 

     

 
TIF Calculations: Annual TIF Amount $5,602 

 

  
Total TIF Amount $84,030 

 

  
Loan Amount $56,751  

 

     

  
less 3% Admin Fee ($1,702) 

 

  
Total TIF Available $55,019  

 

     

     2. TIF USES Cost of Issuance TBD 
 

  
Site Acquisition $30,000 

 

  
Site Preparation/Stabilization $11,775 

 

  
Utility Improvements $8,300 

 

  
Parking Improvements $35,100 

 

  
Total $85,175 

 

     

      

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 76 / 177



Exhibit “D” 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT “D” 

 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF IMPROVEMENTS 

(Two Creeks Holdings Project) 
 

 
The undersigned certifies, represents and warrants to the City of Seward, 

Nebraska, and the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Seward, 
Nebraska (“CRA”) with regard to the following real property situated in the City of 

Seward, Seward County, Nebraska, to wit: 
 

Lots 10-12, Block 45, H M & R Addition, and the West 35 feet of the 
adjacent vacated 12th Street and the adjacent vacated South Street, 

Seward County, Nebraska, 
 

that the Private Improvements required to be constructed by the Redeveloper upon 
the above described property have been satisfactorily completed in accordance 

with the requirements of the Redevelopment Agreement dated ____________, 2015, 
as referenced in the Memorandum of Redevelopment Agreement recorded as 

Instrument No. ___________ in the office of the Register of Deeds for Seward 
County, Nebraska. 

 
 “REDEVELOPER” 

 
TWO CREEKS HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nebraska 

limited liability company    
    

  
      By:        

       Michael Lewis, President 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 77 / 177



Exhibit “D” 
2 

 
STATE OF NEBRASKA ) 

    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF SEWARD ) 

 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 

_________, 2015, by Michael Lewis, President of Two Creeks Holdings, LLC, a 
Nebraska limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 

 
 

              
       Notary Public 

 
 

 
 

 
ACCEPTED by the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 

Seward, Nebraska this ______ day of ______________________, 2015. 
 

“CRA” 
 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA 
 

ATTEST: 
 

By:________________________________ By: ________________________________ 
 Bonnie Otte, Secretary  E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 

 
 

 
 

STATE OF NEBRASKA  ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF SEWARD ) 
 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
_________, 2015, by E. Thomas Spunaugle and Bonnie Otte, Chairman and 

Secretary respectively of the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 
Seward, Nebraska, a public body corporate and politic, on behalf of the Authority. 

 
 

              
       Notary Public 

 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 78 / 177



Exhibit “E” 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “E” 
 

PARKING LOT LICENSE AGREEMENT 
(Two Creeks Holdings Project) 

 
 This PARKING LOT LICENSE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made this 

____ day of _________, 2015 by and between Two Creeks Holdings, LLC, a Nebraska 
limited liability company (“Licensor”), and the Community Redevelopment 

Authority of the City of Seward, Nebraska (“Licensee”).   
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Licensor owns certain real estate located in Seward, Seward County, 
Nebraska, legally described as: 

 
Lots 10-12, Block 45, H M & R Addition, and the West 35 feet 

of the adjacent vacated 12th Street and the adjacent vacated 
South Street, Seward County, Nebraska (the “Property”). 

 
B. Licensor entered into a Redevelopment Agreement (the “Redevelopment 

Agreement”) with the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 
Seward (“CRA”) for the construction of an approximately 4,675 square foot 

autobody retail and warehouse facility, and the associated improvements 
located on the Property.   

 
C. Pursuant to the Redevelopment Agreement, and to ameliorate the blighted 

and substandard conditions of the Property, Licensor agrees to grant a 
nonexclusive limited license to the public to use the commercial parking lot 

located on the Property (the “Parking Lot”).  Under the Redevelopment 
Agreement, Licensor is receiving financial assistance from the CRA to 

improve the Parking Lot provided that the public is granted certain rights to 
use the Parking Lot.  The Parking Lot, as defined herein, shall not include 

any parking facilities that are solely constructed for the autobody, retail and 
warehouse facility. 

 
D. This Agreement sets forth the parties’ rights and obligations with respect to 

the license on the Parking Lot.   
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 79 / 177



Exhibit “E” 
2 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual 
covenants and agreements set forth herein and in the Redevelopment Agreement, 

Licensor and Licensee do now hereby agree as follows:   
 

1. Parking Lot License.  Licensor hereby grants to Licensee, for the benefit of 
the public, a nonexclusive limited license for non-commercial vehicular parking in 

the Parking Lot during Permitted Non-Business Hours (as defined below), in 
accordance with the following conditions: 

 
 a. This Agreement shall grant the public rights solely for the parking of 

non-commercial vehicles and vehicular ingress and egress from the public 
street to the Parking Lot.   

 
 b. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to permit any of the following 

enumerated or similar activities by the public in the Parking Lot: loitering, 
partying, demonstrating, picketing, soliciting, begging, littering, sunbathing, 

consuming alcoholic beverages, carrying firearms, erecting signs or displays, 
engaging in any illegal, offensive, indecent, obscene, vulgar, lewd or 

disorderly speech, dress or conduct, or otherwise disturbing the peace.   
 

c. Licensor shall have the right to deny access to the Parking Lot to 
persons who are disorderly or intoxicated or engaging in any of the activities 

identified in subsection b. above. 
 

d. For the purposes of this Agreement, “Permitted Non-Business Hours” 
are defined as:  

 

 6:00 p.m. to 1:00 a.m., Monday-Friday (except Holidays) 

 7:00 a.m. to 1:00 a.m., Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays 
 

“Holidays” shall include all days officially designated as a Holiday by the 
City of Seward. 

 
e. Licensor shall have the right to deny public access to the Parking Lot 

and remove unauthorized vehicles in the Parking Lot during any time 
outside of the Permitted Non-Business Hours. 

 
f. Licensor shall have the right to post and enforce any reasonable 

requirements regarding the use of the parking lot, including but not limited 
to reservation of certain stalls for handicapped or other designated users, 

time limits per parking session, and any other requirements it deems 
appropriate. 

 
 2. Authorized Use.  Licensee shall be entitled to use the Parking Lot 

solely for the limited uses specified in this Agreement during the permitted hours 
specified in the Agreement and for no other purposes whatsoever.   

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 80 / 177



Exhibit “E” 
3 

 3. Private Property.  The Parking Lot shall at all times remain the private 
property of the Licensor and nothing in this Agreement or the granting of this 

License shall be deemed to create or constitute a public forum, limited or 
otherwise. 

 
 4. Maintenance and Upkeep.  Licensor shall perform all ordinary and/or 

necessary maintenance and repairs on the Parking Lot.  Licensee shall have no 
responsibility to provide or pay for any security, upkeep, maintenance services or 

repairs related to use of the Parking Lot.   
 

5. Indemnification.  Licensor shall defend, indemnify and hold Licensee 
harmless from and against any liability, claims, suits, demands, judgments 

(including costs, expenses and attorneys fees), resulting from actions or claims by 
third parties or defaults under this Agreement by Licensor arising out of the 

license on the Parking Lot.   
 

6. Term.  This Agreement shall be for a term of fifteen (15) years.  
Provided, however, this Agreement shall terminate at any earlier date that the 

Redevelopment Agreement is terminated and is no longer in effect.   
 

7. Insurance.  Licensor, at its expense, shall (i) keep the Parking Lot 
insured under a standard form of insurance policy against loss or damage 

resulting from fire or other perils normally insured under uniform standard 
extended coverage endorsement; and (ii) carry and maintain comprehensive public 

liability insurance.   
 

8. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be appurtenant to and run with 
the property.  The grant of this easement shall be binding upon the heirs, 

executors, administrators, successors and assigns of Licensor.   
 

[Signature and Notary Page Follows] 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 81 / 177



Exhibit “E” 
4 

“LICENSOR” 
 

TWO CREEKS HOLDINGS, LLC, a 
Nebraska limited liability company 

 
 

              
       Michael Lewis, President 

       
STATE OF NEBRASKA ) 

    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 

 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 

_________, 2015, by Michael Lewis, President of Two Creeks Holdings, LLC, a 
Nebraska limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 

 
 

              
       Notary Public 

 
 

 “LICENSEE” 
 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA 
 

ATTEST: 
 

By:________________________________ By: ________________________________ 
 Bonnie Otte, Secretary  E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 

 
 

STATE OF NEBRASKA  ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF SEWARD ) 
 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
__________, 2015, by E. Thomas Spunaugle and Bonnie Otte, Chairman and 

Secretary respectively of the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 
Seward, Nebraska, a public body corporate and politic, on behalf of the Authority. 

 
 

              
       Notary Public 

 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 82 / 177



Exhibit “F” 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “F” 
 

MEMORANDUM OF REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
(Two Creeks Holdings Project) 

 
 This Memorandum of Redevelopment Agreement (“Memorandum”) is made 

this ___ day of June, 2015 by and between the Community Redevelopment 
Authority of the City of Seward, Nebraska (“CRA”) and Two Creeks Holdings, LLC, 

a Nebraska limited liability company (“Redeveloper”). 
  
 1. Redevelopment Agreement.  CRA and Redeveloper have entered into 
that certain Redevelopment Agreement dated as of this even date, describing the 

public improvements being made by the CRA in the Redevelopment Area and the 
private improvements being made to real property owned by Redeveloper and 

legally described as: 
 

Lots 10-12, Block 45, H M & R Addition, and the West 35 feet 
of the adjacent vacated 12th Street and the adjacent vacated 

South Street, Seward County, Nebraska (the “Project Site”).   
 

 2. Tax Increment Financing.  The Redevelopment Agreement provides 
for the capture of the Tax Increment, as defined therein, by the CRA of the private 

improvements to be made by the Redeveloper for a period not to exceed fifteen (15) 
years after the Project Effective Date of January 1, 2016.  The Tax Increment so 

captured by the CRA shall be used to make the public improvements as described 
in the Redevelopment Agreement.   

 
 3. Remaining Terms.  The rest and remaining terms of the 

Redevelopment Agreement are hereby incorporated into this Memorandum as if 
they were set forth in full.  A full and correct copy of the Redevelopment Agreement 

may be inspected at the CRA offices in Seward, Nebraska. 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW] 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 83 / 177



Exhibit “F” 
2 

 
“CRA” 

 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 
ATTEST: 

 
By:________________________________ By: ________________________________ 

 Bonnie Otte, Secretary  E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 
 

STATE OF NEBRASKA  ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF __________ ) 
 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of June, 
2015, by E. Thomas Spunaugle and Bonnie Otte, Chairman and Secretary 

respectively of the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Seward, 
Nebraska, a public body corporate and politic, on behalf of the Authority. 

 
 

              
       Notary Public 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 84 / 177



Exhibit “F” 
3 

 “REDEVELOPER” 
 

TWO CREEKS HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nebraska 
limited liability company    

    
  

      By:        
       Michael Lewis, President 

 
 

STATE OF NEBRASKA ) 
    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF SEWARD ) 
 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of June, 
2015, by Michael Lewis, President of Two Creeks Holdings, LLC, a Nebraska 

limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 
 

 
              

       Notary Public 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
4840-7399-6836, v.  1 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 85 / 177



  

THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 

(“THE 1933 ACT”) AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED, ASSIGNED, SOLD OR 

HYPOTHECATED UNLESS A REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE 1933 ACT 

SHALL BE IN EFFECT WITH RESPECT THERETO AND THERE SHALL HAVE BEEN 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE 1933 ACT AND ALL APPLICABLE RULES AND 

REGULATIONS THEREUNDER, OR THERE SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEWARD PRIOR TO 

TRANSFER, ASSIGNMENT, SALE OR HYPOTHECATION AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, 

SATISFACTORY TO THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SEWARD TO THE EFFECT THAT REGISTRATION UNDER THE 1933 ACT IS 

NOT REQUIRED. 

 

Registered Registered 

 

No. 1 $________ 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF NEBRASKA 

THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  

OF THE CITY OF SEWARD 

 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT REVENUE NOTE 

(TWO CREEKS HOLDINGS PROJECT) 

SERIES 2015A 

 

Maturity Date Original Issuance Date 

December 15, 2031 ______________, 2015 

 

Registered Holder Principal Amount 

 $[TBD] 

 

Interest Rate:  

[TBD] 

 

 THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA (the “Issuer”), a body politic and corporate organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of Nebraska, for value received hereby promises to pay, solely from 

the source and as hereinafter provided, to the Registered Holder identified above, or registered 

assigns, the Principal Amount identified above at the office of the Seward City Treasurer, as 

Paying Agent and Registrar, and in like manner to pay solely from said source interest on said 

principal sum at the Interest Rate identified above from the Original Issuance Date identified 

above or from the most recent date to which interest has not been paid.  Accrued Interest shall be 

payable in three (3) installments due December 15, 2015, June 15, 2016, and December 15, 

2016.  Thereafter principal and accrued interest shall be payable in thirty (30) semi-annual 

installments due June 15, 2017, December 15, 2017, and each June 15 and December 15 

thereafter through December 15, 2031, when all principal and accrued interest shall be due and 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 86 / 177



  2 

payable.  Except with respect to interest not punctually paid, the principal and interest on this 

Note will be paid by check or draft mailed to the Registered Holder in whose name this Note is 

registered at the close of business on the fifteenth calendar day next preceding the applicable 

maturity date at his address as it appears on such note registration books.  The principal and 

interest of this Note is payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America which on 

the respective dates of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. 

 

 This Note is designated The Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 

Seward, Nebraska Redevelopment Revenue Note (Two Creeks Holdings Project), Series 2015A, 

aggregating ____________________ and No/100 Dollars ($_______) (the “Note”) in principal 

amount which have been issued pursuant to the Section 12 of Article VIII of the Nebraska 

Constitution and Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 18-2101 through 18-2154, as amended and supplemented 

(the “Act”) and under and pursuant to a Redevelopment Agreement between Issuer the 

Redeveloper on the above-referenced project, to aid in the financing of a redevelopment project 

pursuant to the Act.  This Note does not represent a debt or pledge of the faith or credit of the 

Issuer or grant to the Registered Holder of this Note any right to have the Issuer levy any taxes or 

appropriate any funds for the payment of the principal hereof or the interest hereon nor is this 

Note a general obligation of the Issuer, or the individual officials, officers or agents thereof.  

This Note is payable solely and only out of the Tax Increment Revenues generated by the above-

referenced Project.  All such revenue has been duly pledged for that purpose. 

 

 THIS NOTE AND THE INTEREST HEREON DOES NOT NOW AND SHALL 

NEVER CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, WITHIN THE MEANING OF 

ANY STATE CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISION OR STATUTORY LIMITATION, NOR 

SHALL THIS NOTE AND THE INTEREST HEREON EVER GIVE RISE TO ANY 

PECUNIARY LIABILITY OF THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, A CHARGE AGAINST ITS GENERAL CREDIT OR 

TAXING POWERS. 

 

 No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Note, or 

for any claim based hereon or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement contained in the 

Redevelopment Agreement for the Project against any past, present or future employee, member 

or elected official of the Issuer, or any incorporator, officer, director, member or trustee of any 

successor corporation, as such, either directly or through the Issuer or any successor corporation, 

under any rule of law or equity, statute or constitution or by the enforcement of any assessment 

or penalty or otherwise, and all such liability of any such incorporator, officer, director or 

member as such is hereby expressly waived and released as a condition of and in consideration 

of the issuance of this Note. 

 

 It is hereby certified and recited and the Issuer has found:  that the Project is an eligible 

“redevelopment project” as defined in the Act; that the issuance of this Note and the construction 

of the Project will promote the public welfare and carry out the purposes of the Act by, among 

other things, contributing to the development of a blighted and substandard area of the City of 

Seward, Nebraska, pursuant to a Redevelopment Plan adopted by the City; that all acts, 

conditions and things required to be done precedent to and in the issuance of this Note have been 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 87 / 177



  3 

properly done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and 

manner as required by law; and, that this Note does not constitute a debt of the Issuer within the 

meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitations. 

 

 This Note is transferable only upon the books of the Issuer kept for that purpose at the 

office of the Registrar by the Registered Holder hereof in person, or by the Registered Holder’s 

duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of this Note together with a written instrument of 

transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the Registered Holder, together with a 

Purchase Letter from the transferee that is satisfactory to Issuer in Issuer’s sole discretion, and 

thereupon a new registered Note or Notes in the same aggregate principal amounts shall be 

issued to the transferee in exchange therefor, and upon payment of the charges therein 

prescribed. The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the person in whose name this 

Note is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on 

account of, the principal hereof and premium, if any, and interest due hereon and for all other 

purposes. 

 

 The Note is issuable in the form of a registered Note without coupons.  Subject to such 

conditions and upon the payment of such charges reasonably set by Issuer, the owner of any 

registered Note or Notes may surrender the same (together with a written instrument of transfer 

satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized 

attorney), in exchange for an equal aggregate principal amount of registered Notes of any other 

authorized denominations. 

 

  The Note is prepayable at any time in whole or in part, at a prepayment price of 

par plus accrued interest to the prepayment date, to the extent there are any funds in the Debt 

Service Fund in excess of amounts necessary to pay scheduled debt service or in the event the 

Redeveloper directs the Issuer that it wishes to prepay the Note.  Prepayments shall reduce the 

number, but not the amount, of scheduled debt service payments on the Note, in inverse order of 

maturity. 

 

 It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, acts and things required by law and 

the Redevelopment Agreement to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent 

to and in the issuance of this Note, exist, have happened and have been performed and that the 

issue of this Note, together with all other indebtedness of the Issuer, is within every debt and 

other limit prescribed by the laws of the State of Nebraska. 

 

 This Note shall not be entitled to any benefit or be valid or become obligatory for any 

purpose until this Note shall have been authenticated by the execution by the Registrar of the 

Certificate of Authentication hereon. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 88 / 177



  4 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA has caused this Note to be signed in its name and 

on its behalf by the signature of its Chairman and attested by the signature of its Secretary, as of 

the Original Issuance Date identified above. 

 

THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

ATTEST:       

 

 

 

___________________________   By: _______________________________ 

Bonnie Otte, Secretary E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

  This Note is delivered pursuant to the Redevelopment Agreement and the CRA’s 

authorizing resolution. 

 

Seward City Treasurer,  

       as Paying Agent and Registrar  

 

 

 

      

By: _______________________________ 

 Authorized Signature 

 

 
  

 

 

 
4833-4244-0484, v.  1 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 89 / 177



CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 
RESOLUTION #2015-__ 

(Amendment to Redevelopment Plan – Two Creeks Holdings Project) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SEWARD, NEBRASKA, APPROVING AN AMENDMENT OF THE 
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, 

INCLUDING A SPECIFIC REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT. 
 

RECITALS 

 
A. The Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Seward 

(“CRA”) has recommended that the Redevelopment Plan for 
Redevelopment Area #1, a copy of which is on file and available for public 
inspection with the City Clerk, (the “Redevelopment Plan”) should be 

amended to include a project for the redevelopment of certain real 
property within the Redevelopment Area identified and legally defined in 

said amendment (the “Project Site”). 
 
B. The proposed amendment to the Redevelopment Plan 

(“Redevelopment Plan Amendment”) is on file and available for public 
inspection with the Seward City Clerk. 
 

C. The Redevelopment Plan Amendment includes a redevelopment 
project, (the “Project”) that will utilize tax increment financing pursuant 

to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 18-2147. 
 
D. The CRA submitted the question of whether the Redevelopment 

Plan Amendment should be recommended to the City Council to the 
Planning Commission of the City of Seward.  
 

E. The Planning Commission recommended the approval of the 
Redevelopment Plan Amendment.  

 
F. Notice of public hearing regarding the adoption and approval of the 
Redevelopment Plan Amendment by the City Council was provided in 

conformity with the Open Meetings Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-1407 et seq., 
the Community Development Law, Neb. Rev. Stat. § 18-2115, and 

Nebraska law. 
 
G. On June 16, 2015, the City Council held a public hearing relating 

to the question of whether the Redevelopment Plan should be adopted 
and approved by the City.  All interested parties were afforded at such 
public hearing a reasonable opportunity to express their views respecting 

the submitted question. 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 90 / 177



 - 2 - 

H. The City Council has reviewed the Redevelopment Plan 
Amendment, the cost benefit analysis prepared by the CRA, and the 

recommendations of the Planning Commission, and has duly considered 
all statements made and material submitted related to the submitted 

question. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, it is found by the City Council of the City of 

Seward, Nebraska, in accordance with the Community Development Law, 
Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 18-2101 through 18-2154 (the “Act”), as follows: 
 

 1. The Project Site is in need of redevelopment to remove blight 
and substandard conditions identified pursuant to Section 

18-2109 of the Act. 
 
 2. The Redevelopment Plan Amendment will, in accordance 

with the present and future needs of the City of Seward, 
promote the health, safety, morals, order, convenience, 

prosperity, and the general welfare of the community in 
conformance with the legislative declarations and 
determinations set forth in the Act. 

 
 3. The Redevelopment Plan Amendment is in conformance with 

the general plan for development of the City of Seward as a 

whole, as set forth in the City of Seward Comprehensive 
Plan, as amended. 

  
 4. The cost and benefits set forth in the Project cost benefit 

analysis are found to be in the long-term best interest of the 

City of Seward. 
 
 5. The Project would not be economically feasible without the 

use of tax increment financing. 
 

 6. The Project would not occur on the Redevelopment Area 
without the use of tax increment financing.   

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, that pursuant to the provisions of the Act and 
in light of the foregoing findings and determinations, the Redevelopment 

Plan Amendment is hereby approved and adopted by the City Council as 
the governing body for the City of Seward. 
 

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

  

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 91 / 177



 - 3 - 

 Dated this 16th day of June, 2015. 
 

 CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 
 

 
 
  By:   

            Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  ______________________ 

 City Clerk 
 

 
  
 

 
4843-1410-2820, v.  1 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 92 / 177



-1- 
 

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA  
RESOLUTION NO. 2105-_____ 

(Approval of Redevelopment Agreement- Two Creeks Holdings Project) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, 
SEWARD COUNTY, NEBRASKA, APPROVING THE FORM OF THE 
REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COMMUNITY 

REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO SAID AGREEMENT. 
 

RECITALS 

 
A. Pursuant to the Nebraska Community Development Law, Neb. Rev. 

Stat. §§ 18-2101 through 18-2154, as amended (the “Act”), the City of Seward, 
Nebraska (“City”), has adopted a redevelopment plan (“Redevelopment Plan”) for 
the area of the City identified as Redevelopment Area #1.  A copy of the 

Redevelopment Plan is on file with the City Clerk for inspection. 
 

 B. The Redevelopment Plan, as amended, includes a specific 
redevelopment project identified as the Two Creeks Holdings Project that will 
include the use of tax increment financing (the “Project”).  

 
 C. On May 27, 2015, the CRA approved the Redevelopment 
Agreement for the Project. 

 
 D. The City has reviewed the Redevelopment Agreement and has 

found it to be in conformity with the Act and the General Comprehensive 
Development Plan of the City, and in the best interests of the City. 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Seward, Nebraska, that the Redevelopment Agreement between the Community 
Redevelopment Authority of the City of Seward, Nebraska, and Two Creeks 

Holdings, LLC, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated here 
by this reference, is hereby approved;  

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the CRA is hereby authorized to execute 
and deliver the Redevelopment Agreement, with such changes, modifications, 

additions, and deletions therein and shall they seem necessary, desirable or 
appropriate, for and on behalf of the CRA;  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the CRA is hereby authorized to take all 

actions contemplated and required in the Redevelopment Agreement including, 

without limitation, the issuance of such TIF Indebtedness not to exceed the 
amount of TIF Indebtedness set forth in the Redevelopment Agreement.  Such 
TIF Indebtedness shall be repaid solely from the Tax Increment created by the 

Project and does not represent the general obligation of the CRA of the City;  

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 93 / 177



-2- 
 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all Resolutions or parts thereof in 

conflict with the provisions of this Resolution or to the extent of such conflicts, 
are herby repealed.  

 
 DATED THIS 16th day of June, 2015. 
 

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 
  
 

 By:    
  Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:        

       City Clerk 
 

 
 
 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 94 / 177



Exhibit “A” 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

(Redevelopment Agreement) 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
4843-9746-4612, v.  1 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 95 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G5

PUBLIC HEARING - 7:00 P.M. - PRELIMINARY AND FINAL 
PLAT - CNG FIRST ADDITION FINAL PLAT - John Hughes
Consideration of an Ordinance approving the final plat for CNG First Addition

Administrative Report: Following review and discussion, adoption of the Ordinance would be in 
order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 96 / 177



 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 Public notice is hereby given by the Planning Commission of the City of Seward, 
Nebraska, that a public hearing will be held on Monday June 8, 2015, at 7:30pm, and 
the City Council of the City of Seward, Seward County, Nebraska on Tuesday June 16, 
2015 at 7:00 pm in the Council Chambers at the Municipal Building, 142 North 7th 
Street, Seward, Nebraska.  Said Public Hearings will be to obtain public comment 
regarding proposed subdivision Preliminary and Final Plat of CNG 1st Addition. 
 
 This subdivision, which is the subject of this notice and of the public hearings, is 
described as follows (18 lots at the old middle school property). 
     
Legal Description:  CNG 1

st
 Addition Final Plat 

 

LOT 4, CNG ADDITION, SEWARD, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 21, 

TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST, OF THE 6th P.M., SEWARD, SEWARD COUNTY, NEBRASKA, 

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOW; 

 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4, CNG ADDITION; THENCE WESTERLY ON 

SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 4,  

N 89°59'01"W 254.06', TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 4; THENCE NORTHERLY ON THE 

WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 4, N 00°30'47"W 470.33', TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 3, CNG 

ADDITION; THENCE EASTERLY ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 3, N 89°27'49"E 127.28'; THENCE 

NORTHERLY ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 3, N 00°28'59"W 27.87'; THENCE EASTERLY ON SAID 

EAST LINE, N 89°27'49"E 5.05'; THENCE NORTHERLY ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 3, N 00°28'59"W 

149.93', TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 2, CNG ADDITION; THENCE EASTERLY ON THE 

SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 2, N 89°27'49"E 121.99', TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2; 

THENCE SOUTHERLY ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 4, S 00°37'18"E 33.09'; THENCE CONTINUING 

SOUTHERLY ON SAID EAST LINE, S 00°28'26"E 617.48', TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID TRACT 

CONTAINING AN AREA OF 3.25 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 
 All interested parties shall be afforded at such public hearing a reasonable 
opportunity to express their views regarding the proposed application for the Preliminary 
and Final Plat.  
 
 
Ed Gonzalez 
Building/Zoning Director 
City of Seward 
 
 
Published: 5-27-15 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 97 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 98 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 99 / 177



Return to: 

City of Seward 

537 Main Street 

Seward, NE 68434 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015- 

 

 AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE THE PLAT ENTITLED "CNG 1ST ADDITION A RE-PLAT  

OF LOT 4, CNG ADDITION TO THE CITY OF SEWARD, SEWARD COUNTY, NEBRASKA," AS 

HEREINAFTER SET FORTH, LOCATED EAST OF 4TH STREET, SOUTH OF CNG ADDITION, 

NORTH OF ASH STREET, WEST OF 3RD STREET; TO PROVIDE FOR PUBLICATION OF THIS 

ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM; TO PROVIDE FOR A TIME WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL 

TAKE EFFECT.  

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, 

NEBRASKA: 

 

Section 1.  Plat and Dedication Approved.  The Plat and dedication of the 

following described real estate is hereby approved: 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

 

 LOT 4, CNG ADDITION, SEWARD, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 21, 

TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST, OF THE 6th P.M., SEWARD, SEWARD COUNTY, 

NEBRASKA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOW; 

 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4, CNG ADDITION; THENCE WESTERLY ON 

SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 4, N 89°59'01"W 254.06', TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 

SAID LOT 4; THENCE NORTHERLY ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 4, N 00°30'47"W 

470.33', TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 3, CNG ADDITION; THENCE EASTERLY ON 

THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 3, N 89°27'49"E 127.28'; THENCE NORTHERLY ON THE 

EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 3, N 00°28'59"W 27.87'; THENCE EASTERLY ON SAID EAST 

LINE, N 89°27'49"E 5.05'; THENCE NORTHERLY ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 3, N 

00°28'59"W 149.93', TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 2, CNG ADDITION; THENCE 

EASTERLY ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 2, N 89°27'49"E 121.99', TO THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE SOUTHERLY ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 

4, S 00°37'18"E 33.09'; THENCE CONTINUING SOUTHERLY ON SAID EAST LINE, S 

00°28'26"E 617.48', TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID TRACT CONTAINING AN AREA 

OF 3.25 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

     

 Section 2.  Plat Designated. The plat of said real estate is hereby 

designated as "CNG 1st Addition, a Re-plat of Lot 4, CNG Addition, City of 

Seward, Seward County, Nebraska."

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 100 / 177



 

 

 Section 3.  Filing and Recording of Plat.  An accurate plat of said 

real estate as platted and dedicated as heretofore set forth, certified to by 

an Engineer or Surveyor, together with a certified copy of this Ordinance 

shall be filed in the office of the Seward County Clerk, Seward, Nebraska.

 Section 4.  Pamphlet form; publication; when operative. This Ordinance 

shall be published in pamphlet form and shall be in full force and effect 

from and after its passage, approval and publication as provided by law and 

City Ordinance. 

 

  

Passed and approved this 16th day of June, 2015. 

 

       THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

                  

        ____________________________ 

        Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

 

Attest: 

 

    ______________________________ 

         Bonnie Otte 

    Assistant Administrator/ 

    Clerk-Treasurer 

    Budget & Human Resources Director 

 

 

(SEAL) 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 101 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G6

CONSIDERATION OF A PLAN FOR STORM WATER 
RUNOFF AND SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS FOR ST. 
JOHN'S NEW DAYCARE CENTER TO BE LOCATED AT 
HILLCREST DR AND COLUMBIA AVE - John Hughes
Consideration of financial participation in the relocation of sanitary sewer line and improvements

Consideration of financial participation in the relocation storm sewer and consideration of constructing 
a new storm sewer line

Administrative Report: St. John's Church is constructing a new Child Development Center on the 
property to the north of St. John Church/School located at the intersection of Columbia Ave. and 
Hillcrest Drive. 

They are proposing relocating a current storm drain and a sanitary sewer line that cuts across the 
property and have reviewed the storm drainage system in this area and are proposing a new line be 
constructed. 

They are requesting the City consider participating in the financial aspects of relocating and 
constructing the infrastructure.

St. John's Church first presented the request at the June 2, 2015 City Council meeting. Council 
directed staff to provide recommendations on financial participation in the project. 

Following the presentation and discussion, Council to determine appropriate action.

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 102 / 177



Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 103 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 104 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 105 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G7

CONSIDERATION OF A DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT WITH 
BLUESTEM ENERGY SOLUTIONS ON RENEWABLE 
ENERGY OPTIONS- Adam Herink

Administrative Report: Bluestem Energy presented information on renewable energy options to the 
City Council during the May 5, 2015 City Council meeting. Information was presented on wind 
generators and solar energy. No action was taken at this meeting. 

Bluestem Energy Solutions is presenting a developer's agreement to investigate and facilitate energy 
options.

Following review and discussion, Council to consider approving said agreement. 

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 106 / 177



 

1 
DOCS/1241890.4  

EXCLUSIVE CONTINGENT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

This Exclusive Contingent Development Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into as of 
_________________ by and between Bluestem Energy Solutions, LLC, a Nebraska limited 
liability company ("Developer"), and the ____________ of ____________________, Nebraska, 
a Nebraska municipal corporation ("Purchaser"). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Developer is an experienced developer, owner and operator of renewable energy 
generating facilities, including those using wind as a fuel source. 
 
B. Purchaser is a Nebraska electric provider that purchases energy at wholesale from one or 
more suppliers of energy.  Purchaser's governing body has adopted a resolution of intent to 
purchase energy from renewable sources as a benefit to Purchaser's residents and businesses. 
 
C. Purchaser desires to supplement or replace a portion of its current wholesale energy 
purchase and to contract with Developer for Developer to engage in pre-development and 
development activities, and to enter into a binding, long-term power purchase agreement 
("PPA") with Developer under which Developer would sell and Purchaser would buy electrical 
output of a wind energy generation facility at an economically reasonable price based on current 
energy costs, internal savings, portfolio diversification, non-monetary benefits, and market 
conditions (the "Project"). 
 
D. The Development Period (as defined below), and Developer's activities therein are, in 
part, intended to assist Developer and Purchaser in determining an appropriate PPA price. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
Developer and Purchaser accept and acknowledge, Developer and Purchaser agree as follows: 
 
1. Exclusivity and Term.  Unless this Agreement is terminated, as provided for herein, for 
a period of two (2) years from the date first written above (the "Development Period"), 
Purchaser shall not engage, work with, contract, procure services from or otherwise do business 
with a developer of renewable energy generation facilities other than Developer.  Purchaser and 
Developer may extend the Development Period by written agreement executed by Purchaser and 
Developer. 
 
2. Development Payment.  Within fifteen (15) days of the date first written above, 
Purchaser shall pay Developer zero dollars ($00.00) for Developer's services under this 
Agreement (the "Development Fund"). 
 
3. Development Obligation.  During the Development Period, at its sole cost and expense, 
Developer shall diligently undertake all necessary actions to investigate and facilitate the 
potential development of the Project in a manner intended to lead to Developer offering to sell 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 107 / 177



 

2 
DOCS/1241890.4  

the energy the Project produces to Purchaser, and Purchaser agreeing to purchase such energy 
via a mutual, binding PPA (the "Development Activities").  The Development Activities may 
include, but shall not be limited to, those activities set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
4. Power Purchase Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the Development Period, 
Developer and Purchaser shall meet and confer as necessary to negotiate in good faith a PPA.  
Developer and Purchaser represent and warrant that by entering into this Agreement, they desire 
in good faith that it result in the execution of a PPA between Developer and Purchaser for the 
Project.  The PPA shall include Developer returning the Development Fund to Purchaser.  If 
Purchaser rejects PPA prices and terms that reflect comparable prices and terms at the time of 
negotiation, Purchaser shall be subject to the Early Termination provisions below.  If Purchaser 
and Developer execute a PPA for the Project, this Agreement shall terminate. 
 
5. Expiration and Termination.  If Developer and Purchaser have negotiated in good faith 
but are unable to agree on and execute a PPA prior to the end of the Development Period, 
Purchaser shall reimburse Developer for Developer's out-of-pocket expenditures on the Project 
during the Development Period (the "Purchaser Termination Payment"). This payment will 
not exceed an amount of _________ dollars ($.00) 
 
6. Early Termination.  If at any time prior to the expiration of the Development Period 
Purchaser desires to terminate this Agreement ("Early Termination"), Purchaser may do so, 
provided, however, that Purchaser must first pay the Purchaser Termination Payment plus an 
additional amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the Purchaser Termination Payment (the "Early 
Termination Payment"). 
 
7. Release and Transfer of Assets.  Upon receiving the Purchaser Termination Payment or 
the Early Termination Payment, as applicable, Developer and Purchaser shall execute a written 
release from this Agreement (the "Release"), this Agreement shall terminate, and Developer and 
Purchaser shall have no further rights or obligations to one another as to the Project.  The 
Release shall include all necessary documents, including but not limited to, bill(s) of sale, 
assignment(s), release(s) and deed(s), to transfer all of Developer's right, title and interest in and 
to the Project to Purchaser.  The preceding sentence shall survive termination of this Agreement. 
 
8. Purchaser Warranties.   
 

a. Purchaser represents and warrants that Purchaser has taken all required 
actions and given all required notices and has requisite authority to enter into and bind 
itself to all of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
b. Purchaser represents and warrants that in entering into and binding itself 

to all of its obligations under this Agreement, Purchaser is not placing itself in breach or 
default of any agreement, contract, warrant or other binding legal obligation(s). 

 
c. Purchaser represents and warrants that the individual executing this 

Agreement on its behalf is duly authorized to, and capable of, binding Purchaser to all of 
its obligations under this Agreement. 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 108 / 177



 

3 
DOCS/1241890.4  

 
d. Purchaser represents and warrants that it will cooperate with Developer as 

necessary to assist Developer in carrying out its obligations under this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to, executing documents, attending meetings, and taking other 
actions to ensure the Project can occur within the existing framework of Purchaser's 
existing wholesale energy purchase contracts and arrangements. 

 
9. Confidentiality.  "Confidential Information" shall mean any information relating to, 
or contained or disclosed within, any contract, technical report, specification, meeting, or 
communication regarding the Project.  Purchaser and Developer agree to maintain the 
confidentiality of any Confidential Information that becomes known to Purchaser or Developer 
during the course of this Agreement, including during and following the development and 
construction of the Project, provided, however, that Developer may disclose Confidential 
Information to third parties as necessary to carry out its obligations under this Agreement, and 
Purchaser may disclose Confidential Information as the Nebraska Public Records Law 
(Neb. Rev. Stats. §§ 84-712 – 84-712.09), may require, subject to obtaining confidentiality 
agreements from such third parties where possible. 
 
10. Construction and Enforcement.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced 
pursuant to Nebraska law.  This Agreement shall be construed as if drafted by both parties. 
 
11. Invalidity.  If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for 
any reason be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 
 
12. No Other Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between 
Purchaser and Developer with respect to the Project and supersedes any prior understandings or 
written or oral agreements between Purchaser and Developer respecting the within subject matter 
and cannot be changed except by their written consent.  Purchaser and Developer enter into this 
agreement at their own risk, and neither party shall have any obligation or liability to the other 
party except as expressly set forth in this Agreement. 
 
13. Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence regarding the parties performance under 
this Agreement. 
 
14. Compliance with Laws.  Purchaser and Developer is solely responsible for its 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations regarding procurement, contracting, and 
execution of its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
15. No Partnership.  Nothing herein shall be construed to create a general partnership or 
authorize Purchaser or Developer to act as agent for the other. 
 
16. Assignment.  Any assignment of this Agreement by Purchaser or Developer to a 
non-affiliated entity may only occur with the written consent of the non-assigning party and any 
such assignment made without said consent shall be void and of no legal effect, provided, 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 109 / 177



 

4 
DOCS/1241890.4  

however, that Developer may assign some or all of its rights and obligations under this 
Agreement to its affiliated entities without Purchaser's consent. 
 
17. Notices.  Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be given to Purchaser at 
__________________________________ and to Developer at Bluestem Energy Solutions, LLC, 
Attn: Mr. Adam Herink, 4361 Lafayette Avenue, Omaha, Nebraska, 68131. 
 
18. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, which when assembled 
such that the authorized signature of each of Purchaser and Developer is present, shall constitute 
an original of this Agreement. 
 

Signatures on Following Page 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 110 / 177



 

5 
DOCS/1241890.4  

DEVELOPER 
 
Bluestem Energy Solutions, LLC 
 
 
 
By:  ________________________ 
 
 Its:  ___________________ 
 
 
 
PURCHASER 
 
____________________________ 
 
 
By:  ________________________    Attest:  _______________________ 
 
 Its:  ___________________     Title:  __________________ 
 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 111 / 177



 

DOCS/1241890.4  

EXHIBIT A 
DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 

 
 Environmental assessment 
 Wind resource assessment 
 Site identification and acquisition (lease or purchase) 
 Interconnection studies 
 Constructability review 
 Engineering review 
 Governmental permitting 
 Aeronautic analysis 
 Equipment procurement 
 Distribution systems study 
 PPA preparation 
 Generator Interconnection Agreement preparation 
 Title and survey review 
 Financing preparation 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 112 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G8

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDED LEASE AGREEMENT 
WITH ALLTEL COMMUNICATION OF NEBRASKA, INC 
d/b/a VERIZON WIRELESS FOR PLACEMENT OF 
EQUIPMENT ON THE CITY'S WATER TOWER - Joe Coyle & 
John Hughes

Administrative Report: The City Council approved a lease agreement with Alltel Communication of 
Nebraska on  February 17, 2015. After further review of the lease agreement, it was determined in 
the best interest of the City to request some changes in the agreement, which are outlined in the 
attached letter. 

Attached is the proposed amended agreement, which has been reviewed by City Department 
Directors and meets their approval. Following review and discussion, a motion to approve the 
amended agreement would be in order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 113 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 114 / 177



SITE NAME: NE07 Independence Day 

SITE NUMBER: 

ATTY/DATE: GJ 

 

 

 WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT  

  

 This Agreement, made this     day of           , 20   , between the City of Seward, Nebraska, 

with its principal offices located at 537 Main Street, Seward, NE 68434, hereinafter designated 

LESSOR and ALLTEL Communications of Nebraska, Inc. d/b/a Verizon Wireless, with its 

principal offices at One Verizon Way, Mail Stop 4AW100, Basking Ridge, New Jersey 07920 

(telephone number 866-862-4404), hereinafter designated LESSEE.  The LESSOR and LESSEE 

are at times collectively referred to hereinafter as the “Parties” or individually as the “Party”. 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

 In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and intending to be legally bound 

hereby, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. PREMISES. LESSOR hereby leases to the LESSEE a portion of that certain space 

(“the Tower Space”) on the LESSOR's water tower, hereinafter referred to as the “Tower”, 

located near Church and 4
th

 Street, Seward, Nebraska,  as shown on the Tax Map of the City of 

Seward as a part of parcel identification number 800038495 and on a Warranty Deed recorded on 

October 4, 1971 in Record 79, Page 335 recorded in the Office of the Seward County Recorder 

(the entirety of LESSOR’s property is referred to hereinafter as the “Property”), together with a 

40’ by 20’ parcel of land (the “Land Space”) sufficient for the installation of LESSEE's 

equipment building; together with the non-exclusive right (“the Right of Way”) for ingress and 

egress, seven (7) days a week, twenty-four (24) hours a day, on foot or motor vehicle, including 

trucks, and for the installation and maintenance of utility wires, poles, cables, conduits, and pipes 

over, under, or along a twelve (12) foot wide right-of-way extending from the nearest public 

right-of-way, North 4
th

 Street, to the Land Space; and together with any further rights of way (the 

“Further Rights of Way”) over and through the Property between the Land Space and the Tower 

Space for the installation and maintenance of utility wires, poles, cables, conduits, and pipes.   

The Tower Space, Land Space, Right of Way and Further Rights of Way, if any, are substantially 

described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part hereof demised premises and  are 

collectively referred to hereinafter as the "Premises".  

 

 In the event any public utility is unable to use the Right of Way or Further Rights of Way, 

the LESSOR hereby agrees to grant an additional right-of-way(s) either to the LESSEE or to the 

public utility at no cost to the LESSEE. 

 

 LESSOR hereby grants permission to LESSEE to install, maintain and operate the radio 

communications equipment, antennas and appurtenances described in Exhibit "B" attached hereto. 

 

 LESSEE reserves the right to replace the aforementioned equipment with similar and 

comparable equipment provided said replacement does not increase tower loading of said Tower. 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 115 / 177



 

 
 2 

 

2. SURVEY.  LESSOR also hereby grants to LESSEE the right to survey the Property 

and Premises, and said survey shall then become Exhibit "C" which shall be attached hereto and 

made a part hereof, and shall control in the event of boundary and access discrepancies between it 

and Exhibit "A".  Cost for such work shall be borne by the LESSEE. 

 

3. TERM; RENTAL; ELECTRICAL.   

 

a.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of execution by both 

Parties, provided, however, the initial term shall be for five (5) years and shall commence on the 

Commencement Date (as hereinafter defined) at which time rental payments shall commence and 

be due at a total annual rental of Twenty-Eight Thousand Eight Hundred and No/100 Dollars 

($28,800.00) to be paid in equal monthly installments on the first day of the month, in advance, 

to LESSOR or to such other person, firm or place as LESSOR may, from time to time, designate 

in writing at least thirty (30) days in advance of any rental payment date by notice given in 

accordance with Paragraph 25 below.  The Agreement shall commence based upon the date 

LESSEE commences installation of the equipment on the Premises.  In the event the date 

LESSEE commences installation of the equipment on the Premises falls between the 1
st
 and 15

th
 

of the month, the Agreement shall commence on the 1
st
 of that month and if the date installation 

commences falls between the 16
th

 and 31
st
 of the month, then the Agreement shall commence on 

the 1
st
 day of the following month (either the “Commencement Date”). LESSOR and LESSEE 

agree that they shall acknowledge in writing the Commencement Date.  LESSOR and LESSEE 

acknowledge and agree that initial rental payment(s) shall not actually be sent by LESSEE until 

thirty (30) days after a written acknowledgement confirming the Commencement Date.  By way 

of illustration of the preceding sentence, if the Commencement Date is January 1 and the written 

acknowledgement confirming the Commencement Date is dated January 14, LESSEE shall send 

to the LESSOR the rental payments for January 1 and February 1 by February 13. 

Upon agreement of the Parties, LESSEE may pay rent by electronic funds transfer and in 

such event, LESSOR agrees to provide to LESSEE bank routing information for such purpose 

upon request of LESSEE.   

b. LESSOR hereby agrees to provide to LESSEE certain documentation (the 

“Rental Documentation”) evidencing LESSOR’s interest in, and right to receive payments under, 

this Agreement, including without limitation:  (i)  documentation, acceptable to LESSEE in 

LESSEE’s reasonable discretion, evidencing LESSOR’s good and sufficient title to and/or 

interest in the Property and right to receive rental payments and other benefits hereunder; (ii)  a 

complete and fully executed Internal Revenue Service Form W-9, or equivalent, in a form 

acceptable to LESSEE, for any party to whom rental payments are to be made pursuant to this 

Agreement; and (iii) other documentation requested by LESSEE in LESSEE’s reasonable 

discretion.  From time to time during the Term of this Agreement and within thirty (30) days of a 

written request from LESSEE, LESSOR agrees to provide updated Rental Documentation in a 

form reasonably acceptable to LESSEE.  The Rental Documentation shall be provided to 

LESSEE in accordance with the provisions of and at the address given in Paragraph 25.  Delivery 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 116 / 177



 

 
 3 

of Rental Documentation to LESSEE shall be a prerequisite for the payment of any rent by 

LESSEE and notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, LESSEE shall have no obligation 

to make any rental payments until Rental Documentation has been supplied to LESSEE as 

provided herein. 

Within fifteen (15) days of obtaining an interest in the Property or this Agreement, any 

assignee(s), transferee(s) or other successor(s) in interest of LESSOR shall provide to LESSEE 

Rental Documentation in the manner set forth in the preceding paragraph.  From time to time 

during the Term of this Agreement and within thirty (30) days of a written request from LESSEE, 

any assignee(s) or transferee(s) of LESSOR agrees to provide updated Rental Documentation in a 

form reasonably acceptable to LESSEE.  Delivery of Rental Documentation to LESSEE by any 

assignee(s), transferee(s) or other successor(s) in interest of LESSOR shall be a prerequisite for 

the payment of any rent by LESSEE to such party and notwithstanding anything to the contrary 

herein, LESSEE shall have no obligation to make any rental payments to any assignee(s), 

transferee(s) or other successor(s) in interest of LESSOR until Rental Documentation has been 

supplied to LESSEE as provided herein. 

c.  LESSOR shall, at all times during the Term, provide electrical service and 

telephone service access within the Premises.  If permitted by the local utility company servicing 

the Premises, LESSEE shall furnish and install an electrical meter at the Premises for the 

measurement of electrical power used by LESSEE's installation.  In the alternative, if permitted 

by the local utility company servicing the Premises, LESSEE shall furnish and install an 

electrical sub-meter at the Premises for the measurement of electrical power used by LESSEE's 

installation.  In the event such sub-meter is installed, the LESSEE shall pay the utility directly for 

its power consumption, if billed by the utility, and if not billed by the utility, then the LESSEE 

shall pay the LESSOR thirty (30) days after receipt of an invoice from LESSOR indicating the 

usage amount based upon LESSOR’s reading of the sub-meter. All invoices for power 

consumption shall be sent by LESSOR to LESSEE at Verizon Wireless, M/S 3846, P.O. Box 

2375, Spokane, WA 99210-2375. LESSEE shall be permitted at any time during the Term, to 

install, maintain and/or provide access to and use of, as necessary (during any power interruption 

at the Premises), a temporary power source, and all related equipment and appurtenances within 

the Premises, or elsewhere on the Property in such locations as reasonably approved by LESSOR. 

 LESSEE shall have the right to install conduits connecting the temporary power source and 

related appurtenances to the Premises. 

4. EXTENSIONS.  This Agreement shall automatically be extended for four (4) 

additional five (5) year terms unless LESSEE terminates it at the end of the then current term by 

giving LESSOR written notice of the intent to terminate at least six (6) months prior to the end of 

the then current term. 

 

5. ANNUAL RENT INCREASES.  The annual rental shall increase on each 

anniversary of the Commencement Date by an amount equal to three percent (3%) of the Rent for 

the previous lease year throughout the initial term and any extended term of this Agreement.. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 117 / 177



 

 
 4 

6. ADDITIONAL EXTENSIONS.  If at the end of the fourth (4th) five (5) year 

extension term this Agreement has not been terminated by either Party by giving to the other 

written notice of an intention to terminate it at least three (3) months prior to the end of such 

term, this Agreement shall continue in force upon the same covenants, terms and conditions for a 

further term of five (5) years and for five (5) year terms thereafter until terminated by either Party 

by giving to the other written notice of its intention to so terminate at least three (3) months prior 

to the end of such term. Annual rental for each such additional five (5) year term shall be equal to 

the annual rental payable with respect to the immediately preceding five (5) year term.  The 

initial term and all extensions shall be collectively referred to herein as the "Term". 

7.   TAXES.    LESSEE shall have the responsibility to pay any personal property, 

real estate taxes, assessments, or charges owed on the Property which LESSOR demonstrates is 

the result of LESSEE’s use of the Premises and/or the installation, maintenance, and operation of 

the LESSEE’s improvements, and any sales tax imposed on the rent (except to the extent that 

LESSEE  is or may become exempt from the payment of sales tax in the jurisdiction in which the 

Property is located), including any increase in real estate taxes at the Property which LESSOR 

demonstrates arises from the LESSEE’s improvements and/or LESSEE’s use of the Premises.  

LESSOR and LESSEE shall each be responsible for the payment of any taxes, levies, 

assessments and other charges imposed including franchise and similar taxes imposed upon the 

business conducted by LESSOR or LESSEE at the Property.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

LESSEE shall not have the obligation to pay any tax, assessment, or charge that LESSEE is 

disputing in good faith in appropriate proceedings prior to a final determination that such tax is 

properly assessed provided that no lien attaches to the Property. Nothing in this Paragraph shall 

be construed as making LESSEE liable for any portion of LESSOR’s income taxes in connection 

with any Property or otherwise. Except as set forth in this Paragraph, LESSOR shall have the 

responsibility to pay any personal property, real estate taxes, assessments, or charges owed on the 

Property and shall do so prior to the imposition of any lien on the Property.   

 

 LESSEE shall have the right, at its sole option and at its sole cost and expense, to appeal, 

challenge or seek modification of any tax assessment or billing for which LESSEE is wholly or 

partly responsible for payment.  LESSOR shall reasonably cooperate with LESSEE at LESSEE’s 

expense in filing, prosecuting and perfecting any appeal or challenge to taxes as set forth in the 

preceding sentence, including but not limited to, executing any consent, appeal or other similar 

document.  In the event that as a result of any appeal or challenge by LESSEE, there is a 

reduction, credit or repayment received by the LESSOR for any taxes previously paid by 

LESSEE, LESSOR agrees to promptly reimburse to LESSEE the amount of said reduction, credit 

or repayment.  In the event that LESSEE does not have the standing rights to pursue a good faith 

and reasonable dispute of any taxes under this paragraph, LESSOR will pursue such dispute at 

LESSEE’s sole cost and expense upon written request of LESSEE. 

 

8. USE; GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS.  LESSEE shall use the Premises for the 

purpose of constructing, maintaining, repairing and operating a communications facility and uses 

incidental thereto. All improvements, equipment, antennas and conduits shall be at LESSEE's 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 118 / 177



 

 
 5 

expense and their installation shall be at the discretion and option of LESSEE.  LESSEE shall 

have the right to replace, repair, add or otherwise modify its utilities, equipment, antennas and/or 

conduits or any portion thereof and the frequencies over which the equipment operates, whether 

the equipment, antennas, conduits or frequencies are specified or not on any exhibit attached 

hereto, during the Term. It is understood and agreed that LESSEE's ability to use the Premises is 

contingent upon its obtaining after the execution date of this Agreement all of the certificates, 

permits and other approvals (collectively the "Governmental Approvals") that may be required by 

any Federal, State or Local authorities as well as satisfactory soil boring tests and structural 

analysis which will permit LESSEE use of the Premises as set forth above.  LESSOR shall 

cooperate with LESSEE in its effort to obtain such approvals and shall take no action which 

would adversely affect the status of the Property with respect to the proposed use thereof by 

LESSEE.  In the event that (i) any of such applications for such Governmental Approvals should 

be finally rejected; (ii) any Governmental Approval issued to LESSEE is canceled, expires, 

lapses, or is otherwise withdrawn or terminated by governmental authority; (iii) LESSEE 

determines that such Governmental Approvals may not be obtained in a timely manner; (iv) 

LESSEE determines that any soil boring tests or structural analysis is unsatisfactory; (v) LESSEE 

determines that the Premises is no longer technically or structurally compatible for its use, or (vi) 

LESSEE, in its sole discretion, determines that the use the Premises is obsolete or unnecessary, 

LESSEE shall have the right to terminate this Agreement.    Notice of LESSEE's exercise of its 

right to terminate shall be given to LESSOR in writing by certified mail, return receipt requested, 

and shall be effective upon the mailing of such notice by LESSEE, or upon such later date as 

designated by LESSEE.  All rentals paid to said termination date shall be retained by LESSOR.  

Upon such termination, this Agreement shall be of no further force or effect except to the extent 

of the representations, warranties and indemnities made by each Party to the other hereunder.  

Otherwise, the LESSEE shall have no further obligations for the payment of rent to LESSOR. 

9. INDEMNIFICATION.  Subject to Paragraph 10 below, each Party shall indemnify 

and hold the other harmless against any claim of liability or loss from personal injury or 

property damage resulting from or arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the 

indemnifying Party, its employees, contractors or agents, except to the extent such claims or 

damages may be due to or caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the other Party, or 

its employees, contractors or agents. 

10. INSURANCE.   

a. Notwithstanding the indemnity in section 10, the Parties hereby waive and release 

any and all rights of action for negligence against the other which may hereafter 

arise on account of damage to the Premises or to the Property, resulting from any 

fire, or other casualty of the kind covered by standard fire insurance policies with 

extended coverage, regardless of whether or not, or in what amounts, such 

insurance is now or hereafter carried by the Parties, or either of them. These 

waivers and releases shall apply between the Parties and they shall also apply to 

any claims under or through either Party as a result of any asserted right of 

subrogation.  All such policies of insurance obtained by either Party concerning 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 119 / 177



 

 
 6 

the Premises or the Property shall waive the insurer's right of subrogation against 

the other Party.   

b. LESSEE will maintain at its own cost; 

i. Commercial General Liability insurance with limits not less than 

$1,000,000 for injury to or death of one or more persons in any one 

occurrence and $500,000 for damage or destruction to property in any one 

occurrence 

ii. Commercial Auto Liability insurance on all owned, non-owned and hired 

automobiles with a minimum combined limit of not less than one million 

($1,000,000) per occurrence 

iii. Workers Compensation insurance providing the statutory benefits and not 

less than one million ($1,000,000) of Employers Liability coverage. 

LESSEE will include the LESSOR as an additional insured on the Commercial 

General Liability and Auto Liability policies. 

c. LESSOR will maintain at its own cost commercial general liability insurance with 

limits not less than $1,000,000 for injury to or death of one or more persons in any 

one occurrence and $500,000 for damage or destruction to property in any one 

occurrence.  LESSOR will include the LESSEE as an additional insured. 

d. In addition, LESSOR shall obtain and keep in force during the Term a policy or 

policies insuring against loss or damage to the Tower with a commercially 

reasonable valuation, as the same shall exist from time to time without a 

coinsurance feature.  LESSOR’s policy or policies shall insure against all risks of 

direct physical loss or damage (except the perils of flood and earthquake unless 

required by a lender or included in the base premium), including coverage for any 

additional costs resulting from debris removal and reasonable amounts of 

coverage for the enforcement of any ordinance or law regulating the 

reconstruction or replacement of any undamaged sections of the Tower required to 

be demolished or removed by reason of the enforcement of any building, zoning, 

safety or land use laws as the result of a covered loss, but not including plate glass 

insurance. 

11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  Except for indemnification pursuant to 

paragraphs 9 and 31, neither Party shall be liable to the other, or any of their respective agents, 

representatives, employees for any lost revenue, lost profits, loss of technology, rights or 

services, incidental, punitive, indirect, special or consequential damages, loss of data, or 

interruption or loss of use of service, even if advised of the possibility of such damages, 

whether under theory of contract, tort (including negligence), strict liability or otherwise. 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 120 / 177



 

 
 7 

12. ANNUAL TERMINATION.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 

herein, provided LESSEE is not in default hereunder beyond applicable notice and cure periods, 

LESSEE shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon the annual anniversary of the 

Commencement Date provided that three (3) months prior notice is given to LESSOR. 

13. ACCESS TO TOWER.  LESSOR agrees the LESSEE shall have free access to the 

Tower at all times for the purpose of installing and maintaining the said equipment.  LESSOR 

shall furnish LESSEE with necessary means of access for the purpose of ingress and egress to 

this site and Tower location.  It is agreed, however, that only authorized engineers, employees or 

properly authorized contractors of LESSEE or persons under their direct supervision will be 

permitted to enter said premises. 

14.  TOWER COMPLIANCE.  LESSOR covenants that it will keep the Tower in 

good repair as required by all Laws (as defined in Paragraph 35 below). The LESSOR shall also 

comply with all rules and regulations enforced by the Federal Communications Commission with 

regard to the lighting, marking and painting of towers.   If the LESSOR fails to make such repairs 

including maintenance the LESSEE may make the repairs and the costs thereof shall be payable 

to the LESSEE by the LESSOR on demand together with interest thereon from the date of 

payment at the greater of (i) ten percent (10%) per annum, or (ii) the highest rate permitted by 

applicable Laws. If the LESSOR does not make payment to the LESSEE within ten (10) days 

after such demand, the LESSEE shall have the right to deduct the costs of the repairs from the 

succeeding monthly rental amounts normally due from the LESSEE to the LESSOR. 

 No materials may be used in the installation of the antennas or transmission lines that will 

cause corrosion or rust or deterioration of the Tower structure or its appurtenances. 

 

 All antenna(s) on the Tower must be identified by a marking fastened securely to its bracket 

on the Tower and all transmission lines are to be tagged at the conduit opening where it enters any 

user's equipment space. 

 

 Not later than fifteen (15) days following the execution of this Agreement, LESSOR shall 

supply to LESSEE copies of all structural analysis reports that have done with respect to the Tower 

and throughout the Term, LESSOR shall supply to LESSEE copies of all structural analysis reports 

that are done with respect to the Tower promptly after the completion of the same. 

 

          Upon request of the LESSOR, LESSEE agrees to relocate its equipment on a temporary basis 

to another location on the Property, hereinafter referred to as the “Temporary Relocation,” if 

necessary, for the purpose of LESSOR performing maintenance, repair or similar work at the 

Property or on the Tower provided:  

 

a. The Temporary Relocation is similar to LESSEE’s existing location in size and is 

fully compatible for LESSEE’s use, in LESSEE’s reasonable determination; 

 

b. LESSEE shall pay all costs incurred by LESSEE for relocating LESSEE’s 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 121 / 177



 

 
 8 

equipment to the Temporary Relocation and improving the Temporary Relocation 

so that it is fully compatible for the LESSEE’s use, in LESSEE’s reasonable 

determination.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, LESSEE shall be responsible for 

said relocation costs on one occasion every ten (10) years of the Term.  In the event 

that LESSOR requires Temporary Relocation on more than one occasion per ten 

(10) year lease period, LESSOR shall be responsible for LESSEE relocation costs 

(either through a payment to LESSEE or a via rent abatement) for each occurrence 

thereafter during such ten (10) year period;  

 

c. LESSOR gives LESSEE at least ninety (90) days written notice prior to requiring 

LESSEE to relocate; 

 

d. LESSEE’s use at the Premises is not interrupted or diminished during the relocation 

and LESSEE is allowed, if necessary, in LESSEE’s reasonable determination, to 

place a temporary installation on the Property during any such relocation; and 

 

e. Upon the completion of any maintenance, repair or similar work by LESSOR, 

LESSEE is permitted to return to its original location from the temporary location 

with all costs for the same being paid by LESSEE (accept if such Temporary 

Relocation occurs more than once per ten year period, then LESSOR shall be 

responsible for costs of each subsequent occurrence).   

 

f. LESSEE shall be responsible the cost of painting of all LESSEE’s cables, conduits, 

clamps and any ancillary equipment LESSEE attaches to the Tower.   LESSEE 

agrees that the color and quality of the paint must be approved by LESSOR, in 

LESSOR’s reasonable discretion, which said approval shall not be unreasonably 

withheld, conditioned or delayed.  

 

15. INTERFERENCE.  LESSEE agrees to install equipment of the type and frequency 

which will not cause harmful interference which is measurable in accordance with then existing 

industry standards to any equipment of LESSOR or other lessees of the Property which existed 

on the Property prior to the date this Agreement is executed by the Parties.  In the event any 

after-installed LESSEE's equipment causes such interference, and after LESSOR has notified 

LESSEE in writing of such interference, LESSEE will take all commercially reasonable steps 

necessary to correct and eliminate the interference, including but not limited to, at LESSEE’s 

option, powering down such equipment and later powering up such equipment for intermittent 

testing.  In no event will LESSOR be entitled to terminate this Agreement or relocate the 

equipment as long as LESSEE is making a good faith effort to remedy the interference issue.  

LESSOR agrees that LESSOR and/or any other tenants of the Property who currently have or 

in the future take possession of the Property will be permitted to install only such equipment 

that is of the type and frequency which will not cause harmful interference which is measurable 

in accordance with then existing industry standards to the then existing equipment of LESSEE. 

 The Parties acknowledge that there will not be an adequate remedy at law for noncompliance 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 122 / 177



 

 
 9 

with the provisions of this Paragraph and therefore, either Party shall have the right to equitable 

remedies, such as, without limitation, injunctive relief and specific performance.  

16. REMOVAL AT END OF TERM.  LESSEE shall, upon expiration of the Term, or 

within ninety (90) days after any earlier termination of the Agreement, remove its building(s), 

antenna(s), equipment, conduits, fixtures and all personal property and restore the Premises to 

its original condition, reasonable wear and tear and casualty damage excepted.  LESSOR 

agrees and acknowledges that all of the equipment, conduits, fixtures and personal property of 

LESSEE shall remain the personal property of LESSEE and LESSEE shall have the right to 

remove the same at any time during the Term, whether or not said items are considered fixtures 

and attachments to real property under applicable Laws.  If such time for removal causes 

LESSEE to remain on the Premises after termination of this Agreement, LESSEE shall pay rent 

at the then existing monthly rate or on the existing monthly pro-rata basis if based upon a 

longer payment term, until such time as the removal of the building, antenna structure, fixtures 

and all personal property are completed. 

17. HOLDOVER.  LESSEE has no right to retain possession of the Premises or any 

part thereof beyond the expiration of that removal period set forth in Paragraph 16 herein, 

unless the Parties are negotiating a new lease or lease extension in good faith.  In the event that 

the Parties are not in the process of negotiating a new lease or lease extension in good faith, 

LESSEE holds over in violation of Paragraph 16 and this Paragraph 17, then the rent then in 

effect payable from and after the time of the expiration or earlier removal period set forth in 

Paragraph 16 shall be equal to the rent applicable during the month immediately preceding 

such expiration or earlier termination. 

18. RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL.  If LESSOR elects, during the Term (i) to sell or 

otherwise transfer all or any portion of the Property, whether separately or as part of a larger 

parcel of which the Property is a part, or (ii) to grant to a third party by easement or other legal 

instrument an interest in and to that portion of the Tower and or Property occupied by LESSEE, 

or a larger portion thereof, for the purpose of operating and maintaining communications 

facilities or the management thereof, with or without an assignment of this Agreement to such 

third party, LESSEE shall have the right of first refusal to meet any bona fide offer of sale or 

transfer on the same terms and conditions of such offer. If LESSEE fails to meet such bona fide 

offer within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof from LESSOR, LESSOR may sell or 

grant the easement or interest in the Property or portion thereof to such third person in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of such third party offer. For purposes of this 

Paragraph, any transfer, bequest or devise of LESSOR's interest in the Property as a result of 

the death of LESSOR, whether by will or intestate succession, or any conveyance to LESSOR’s 

family members by direct conveyance or by conveyance to a trust for the benefit of family 

members shall not be considered a sale of the Property for which LESSEE has any right of first 

refusal.  

19. RIGHTS UPON SALE.  Should LESSOR, at any time during the Term decide (i) 

to sell or transfer all or any part of the Property or the Tower thereon to a purchaser other than 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 123 / 177



 

 
 10 

LESSEE, or (ii) to grant to a third party by easement or other legal instrument an interest in and 

to that portion of the Tower and or Property occupied by LESSEE, or a larger portion thereof, 

for the purpose of operating and maintaining communications facilities or the management 

thereof, such sale or grant of an easement or interest therein shall be under and subject to this 

Agreement and any such purchaser or transferee shall recognize LESSEE's rights hereunder 

under the terms of this Agreement.  To the extent that LESSOR grants to a third party by 

easement or other legal instrument an interest in and to that portion of the Tower and/or 

Property occupied by LESSEE for the purpose of operating and maintaining communications 

facilities or the management thereof and in conjunction therewith, assigns this Agreement to 

said third party, LESSOR shall not be released from its obligations to LESSEE under this 

Agreement, and LESSEE shall have the right to look to LESSOR and the third party for the full 

performance of this Agreement. 

20. QUIET ENJOYMENT.  LESSOR covenants that LESSEE, on paying the rent and 

performing the covenants herein, shall peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the 

Premises. 

21. TITLE.  LESSOR represents and warrants to LESSEE as of the execution date of 

this Agreement, and covenants during the Term that LESSOR is seized of good and sufficient 

title and interest to the Property and has full authority to enter into and execute this Agreement. 

LESSOR further covenants during the Term that there are no liens, judgments or impediments 

of title on the Property, or affecting LESSOR's title to the same and that there are no covenants, 

easements or restrictions which prevent or adversely affect the use or occupancy of the 

Premises by LESSEE as set forth above. 

22. INTEGRATION.  It is agreed and understood that this Agreement contains all 

agreements, promises and understandings between LESSOR and LESSEE and that no verbal or 

oral agreements, promises or understandings shall be binding upon either LESSOR or LESSEE 

in any dispute, controversy or proceeding at law, and any addition, variation or modification to 

this Agreement shall be void and ineffective unless made in writing signed by the Parties or in 

a written acknowledgment in the case provided in Paragraph 3.  In the event any provision of 

the Agreement is found to be invalid or unenforceable, such finding shall not affect the validity 

and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.  The failure of either Party to 

insist upon strict performance of any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement or to exercise 

any of its rights under the Agreement shall not waive such rights and such Party shall have the 

right to enforce such rights at any time and take such action as may be lawful and authorized 

under this Agreement, in law or in equity. 

23. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement and the performance thereof shall be 

governed, interpreted, construed and regulated by the Laws of the State in which the Property is 

located. 

24. ASSIGNMENT.  This Agreement may be sold, assigned or transferred by the 

LESSEE without any approval or consent of the LESSOR to the LESSEE's principal, affiliates, 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 124 / 177



 

 
 11 

subsidiaries of its principal or to any entity which acquires all or substantially all of LESSEE's 

assets in the market defined by the Federal Communications Commission in which the 

Property is located by reason of a merger, acquisition or other business reorganization.  As to 

other parties, this Agreement may not be sold, assigned or transferred without the written consent 

of the LESSOR, which such consent will not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned.  

No change of stock ownership, partnership interest or control of LESSEE or transfer upon 

partnership or corporate dissolution of LESSEE shall constitute an assignment hereunder.   

25. NOTICES.  All notices hereunder must be in writing and shall be deemed validly 

given if sent by certified mail, return receipt requested or by commercial courier, provided the 

courier's regular business is delivery service and provided further that it guarantees delivery to 

the addressee by the end of the next business day following the courier's receipt from the 

sender, addressed as follows (or any other address that the Party to be notified may have 

designated to the sender by like notice): 

LESSOR: City of Seward  

  537 Main Street  

  Seward, NE 68434 

 

LESSEE: ALLTEL Communications of Nebraska, Inc. 

d/b/a Verizon Wireless 

180 Washington Valley Road  

Bedminster, New Jersey 07921  

Attention: Network Real Estate 

Notice shall be effective upon actual receipt or refusal as shown on the receipt obtained 

pursuant to the foregoing. 

26. SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall extend to and bind the heirs, personal 

representative, successors and assigns of the Parties hereto. 

27. SUBORDINATION AND NON-DISTURBANCE.  LESSOR shall obtain not 

later than fifteen (15) days following the execution of this Agreement, a Non-Disturbance 

Agreement, as defined below, from its existing mortgagee(s), ground lessors and master 

lessors, if any, of the Property.  At LESSOR's option, this Agreement shall be subordinate to 

any future master lease, ground lease, mortgage, deed of trust or other security interest (a 

“Mortgage”) by LESSOR which from time to time may encumber all or part of the Property, 

Tower or right-of-way; provided, however, as a condition precedent to LESSEE being required 

to subordinate its interest in this Agreement to any future Mortgage covering the Tower or 

Property, LESSOR shall obtain for LESSEE's benefit a non-disturbance and attornment 

agreement for LESSEE's benefit in the form reasonably satisfactory to LESSEE, and containing 

the terms described below (the “Non-Disturbance Agreement”), and shall recognize LESSEE's 

right to remain in occupancy of and have access to the Premises as long as LESSEE is not in 

default of this Agreement beyond applicable notice and cure periods.  The Non-Disturbance 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 125 / 177



 

 
 12 

Agreement shall include the encumbering party's (“Lender's”) agreement that, if Lender or its 

successor-in-interest or any purchaser of Lender’s or its successor’s interest (a “Purchaser”) 

acquires an ownership interest in the Tower or Property, Lender or such successor-in-interest or 

Purchaser will (1) honor all of the terms of the Agreement, (2) fulfill LESSOR's obligations 

under the Agreement, and (3) promptly cure all of the then-existing LESSOR defaults under the 

Agreement.  Such Non-Disturbance Agreement must be binding on all of Lender's participants 

in the subject loan (if any) and on all successors and assigns of Lender and/or its participants 

and on all Purchasers.  In return for such Non-Disturbance Agreement, LESSEE will execute 

an agreement for Lender's benefit in which LESSEE (1) confirms that the Agreement is 

subordinate to the Mortgage or other real property interest in favor of Lender, (2) agrees to 

attorn to Lender if Lender becomes the owner of the Tower or Property and (3) agrees to accept 

a cure by Lender of any of LESSOR's defaults, provided such cure is completed within the 

deadline applicable to LESSOR. In the event LESSOR defaults in the payment and/or other 

performance of any mortgage or other real property interest encumbering the Property, 

LESSEE, may, at its sole option and without obligation, cure or correct LESSOR's default and 

upon doing so, LESSEE shall be subrogated to any and all rights, titles, liens and equities of the 

holders of such mortgage or other real property interest and LESSEE shall be entitled to deduct 

and setoff against all rents that may otherwise become due under this Agreement the sums paid 

by LESSEE to cure or correct such defaults. 

28. RECORDING.  LESSOR agrees to execute a Memorandum of this Agreement 

which LESSEE may record with the appropriate recording officer. The date set forth in the 

Memorandum of Lease is for recording purposes only and bears no reference to 

commencement of either the Term or rent payments. 

29. DEFAULT.   

a. In the event there is a breach by LESSEE with respect to any of the  

provisions of this Agreement or its obligations under it, including the payment of rent, LESSOR 

shall give LESSEE written notice of such breach.  After receipt of such written notice, LESSEE 

shall have fifteen (15) days in which to cure any monetary breach and thirty (30) days in which to 

cure any non-monetary breach, provided LESSEE shall have such extended period as may be 

required beyond the thirty (30) days if the nature of the cure is such that it reasonably requires 

more than thirty (30) days and LESSEE commences the cure within the thirty (30) day period and 

thereafter continuously and diligently pursues the cure to completion.  LESSOR may not 

maintain any action or effect any remedies for default against LESSEE unless and until LESSEE 

has failed to cure the breach within the time periods provided in this Paragraph. 

b. In the event there is a breach by LESSOR with respect to any of the 

provisions of this Agreement or its obligations under it, LESSEE shall give LESSOR written 

notice of such breach.  After receipt of such written notice, LESSOR shall have thirty (30) days 

in which to cure any such breach, provided LESSOR shall have such extended period as may be 

required beyond the thirty (30) days if the nature of the cure is such that it reasonably requires 

more than thirty (30) days and LESSOR commences the cure within the thirty (30) day period 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 126 / 177



 

 
 13 

and thereafter continuously and diligently pursues the cure to completion. LESSEE may not 

maintain any action or effect any remedies for default against LESSOR unless and until LESSOR 

has failed to cure the breach within the time periods provided in this Paragraph.  Notwithstanding 

the foregoing to the contrary, it shall be a default under this Agreement if LESSOR fails, within 

five (5) days after receipt of written notice of such breach, to perform an obligation required to be 

performed by LESSOR if the failure to perform such an obligation interferes with LESSEE’s 

ability to conduct its business on the Property; provided, however, that if the nature of 

LESSOR’s obligation is such that more than five (5) days after such notice is reasonably required 

for its performance, then it shall not be a default under this Agreement if performance is 

commenced within such five (5) day period and thereafter diligently pursued to completion. 

30. REMEDIES.  Upon a default, the non-defaulting Party may at its option (but 

without obligation to do so), perform the defaulting Party’s duty or obligation on the defaulting 

Party’s behalf, including but not limited to the obtaining of reasonably required insurance 

policies.  The costs and expenses of any such performance by the non-defaulting Party shall be 

due and payable by the defaulting Party upon invoice therefor.  In the event of a default by either 

Party with respect to a material provision of this Agreement, without limiting the non-defaulting 

Party in the exercise of any right or remedy which the non-defaulting Party may have by reason 

of such default, the non-defaulting Party may terminate the Agreement and/or pursue any remedy 

now or hereafter available to the non-defaulting Party under the Laws or judicial decisions of the 

state in which the Premises are located; provided, however, LESSOR shall use reasonable efforts 

to mitigate its damages in connection with a default by LESSEE.  If LESSEE so performs any of 

LESSOR’s obligations hereunder, the full amount of the reasonable and actual cost and expense 

incurred by LESSEE shall immediately be owing by LESSOR to LESSEE, and LESSOR shall 

pay to LESSEE upon demand the full undisputed amount thereof with interest thereon from the 

date of payment at the greater of (i) ten percent (10%) per annum, or (ii) the highest rate 

permitted by applicable Laws.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if LESSOR does not pay LESSEE 

the full undisputed amount within thirty (30) days of its receipt of an invoice setting forth the 

amount due from LESSOR, LESSEE may offset the full undisputed amount, including all 

accrued interest, due against all fees due and owing to LESSOR until the full undisputed amount, 

including all accrued interest, is fully reimbursed to LESSEE. 

31. ENVIRONMENTAL. 

a. LESSOR will be responsible for all obligations of compliance with any 

and all environmental and industrial hygiene laws, including any regulations, guidelines, 

standards, or policies of any governmental authorities regulating or imposing standards of 

liability or standards of conduct with regard to any environmental or industrial hygiene 

conditions or concerns as may now or at any time hereafter be in effect, that are or were in any 

way related to activity now conducted in, on, or in any way related to the Tower or Property, 

unless such conditions or concerns are caused by the specific activities of LESSEE in the 

Premises. 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 127 / 177



 

 
 14 

b. LESSOR shall hold LESSEE harmless and indemnify LESSEE from and 

assume all duties, responsibility and liability at LESSOR's sole cost and expense, for all duties, 

responsibilities, and liability (for payment of penalties, sanctions, forfeitures, losses, costs, or 

damages) and for responding to any action, notice, claim, order, summons, citation, directive, 

litigation, investigation or proceeding which is in any way related to: a) failure to comply with 

any environmental or industrial hygiene law, including without limitation any regulations, 

guidelines, standards, or policies of any governmental authorities regulating or imposing 

standards of liability or standards of conduct with regard to any environmental or industrial 

hygiene concerns or conditions as may now or at any time hereafter be in effect, unless such non-

compliance results from conditions caused by LESSEE; and b) any environmental or industrial 

hygiene conditions arising out of or in any way related to the condition of the Tower or Property 

or activities conducted thereon, unless such environmental conditions are caused by LESSEE. 

32. CASUALTY.  In the event of damage by fire or other casualty to the Tower or 

Premises that cannot reasonably be expected to be repaired within forty-five (45) days 

following same or, if the Property is damaged by fire or other casualty so that such damage may 

reasonably be expected to disrupt LESSEE's operations at the Premises for more than forty-five 

(45) days, then LESSEE may, at any time following such fire or other casualty, provided 

LESSOR has not completed the restoration required to permit LESSEE to resume its operation 

at the Premises, terminate this Agreement upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice to 

LESSOR.  Any such notice of termination shall cause this Agreement to expire with the same 

force and effect as though the date set forth in such notice were the date originally set as the 

expiration date of this Agreement and the Parties shall make an appropriate adjustment, as of 

such termination date, with respect to payments due to the other under this Agreement.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the rent shall abate during the period of repair following such 

fire or other casualty in proportion to the degree to which LESSEE’s use of the Premises is 

impaired. 

33. CONDEMNATION.  In the event of any condemnation of all or any portion of the 

Property, this Agreement shall terminate as to the part so taken as of the date the condemning 

authority takes title or possession, whichever occurs first.  If as a result of a partial 

condemnation of the Premises or Tower, LESSEE, in LESSEE’s sole discretion, is unable to 

use the Premises for the purposes intended hereunder, or if such condemnation may reasonably 

be expected to disrupt LESSEE's operations at the Premises for more than forty-five (45) days, 

LESSEE may, at LESSEE’s option, to be exercised in writing within fifteen (15) days after 

LESSOR shall have given LESSEE written notice of such taking (or in the absence of such 

notice, within fifteen (15) days after the condemning authority shall have taken possession) 

terminate this Agreement as of the date the condemning authority takes such possession.  

LESSEE may on its own behalf make a claim in any condemnation proceeding involving the 

Premises for losses related to the equipment, conduits, fixtures, its relocation costs and its 

damages and losses (but not for the loss of its leasehold interest).  Any such notice of 

termination shall cause this Agreement to expire with the same force and effect as though the 

date set forth in such notice were the date originally set as the expiration date of this Agreement 

and the Parties shall make an appropriate adjustment as of such termination date with respect to 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 128 / 177



 

 
 15 

payments due to the other under this Agreement.  If LESSEE does not terminate this 

Agreement in accordance with the foregoing, this Agreement shall remain in full force and 

effect as to the portion of the Premises remaining, except that the rent shall be reduced in the 

same proportion as the rentable area of the Premises taken bears to the total rentable area of the 

Premises.  In the event that this Agreement is not terminated by reason of such condemnation, 

LESSOR shall promptly repair any damage to the Premises caused by such condemning 

authority. 

34. SUBMISSION OF AGREEMENT/PARTIAL INVALIDITY/AUTHORITY.  The 

submission of this Agreement for examination does not constitute an offer to lease the 

Premises and this Agreement becomes effective only upon the full execution of this Agreement 

by the Parties. If any provision herein is invalid, it shall be considered deleted from this 

Agreement and shall not invalidate the remaining provisions of this Agreement. Each of the 

Parties hereto warrants to the other that the person or persons executing this Agreement on 

behalf of such Party has the full right, power and authority to enter into and execute this 

Agreement on such Party's behalf and that no consent from any other person or entity is 

necessary as a condition precedent to the legal effect of this Agreement. 

35. APPLICABLE LAWS.  During the Term, LESSOR shall maintain the Property 

and all structural elements of the Premises in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, ordinances, directives, covenants, easements, zoning and land use regulations, and 

restrictions of record, permits, building codes, and the requirements of any applicable fire 

insurance underwriter or rating bureau, now in effect or which may hereafter come into effect 

(including, without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act and laws regulating 

hazardous substances) (collectively “Laws”).  LESSEE shall, in respect to the condition of the 

Premises and at LESSEE’s sole cost and expense, comply with (a) all Laws relating solely to 

LESSEE’s specific and unique nature of use of the Premises (other than general office use); 

and (b) all building codes requiring modifications to the Premises due to the improvements 

being made by LESSEE in the Premises. 

36. SURVIVAL.  The provisions of the Agreement relating to indemnification from 

one Party to the other Party shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

Additionally, any provisions of this Agreement which require performance subsequent to the 

termination or expiration of this Agreement shall also survive such termination or expiration. 

37. CAPTIONS.  The captions contained in this Agreement are inserted for 

convenience only and are not intended to be part of the Agreement. They shall not affect or be 

utilized in the construction or interpretation of the Agreement. 

 

(signatures on next page) 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 129 / 177



 

 
 16 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set their hands and affixed their 

respective seals the day and year first above written. 

LESSOR: 

       City of Seward 

 

       By:       

       Name: ____________________________ 

       Its:_______________________________ 

       Date: _______________________________ 

 

 

LESSEE: 

     ALLTEL Communications of Nebraska, Inc. 

   d/b/a Verizon Wireless 

 

       By:        

        Lynn Ramsey 

       Its:  Area Vice President Network 

       Date:       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 130 / 177



 

 
 17 

 

Exhibit A  

 

Description of Property and Premises lease to LESSEE 

 

 

 

(see attached) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 131 / 177



 

 
 18 

 

 

Exhibit B  

 

Description of LESSEE equipment on Tower 

 

 

 

(see attached) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 132 / 177



 

 
 19 

 

 

 

Exhibit C 

 

Survey 

 

(see attached) 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 133 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G9

CONSIDERATION OF A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH 
HAMILTON EQUIPMENT FOR EXCAVATOR - John Hughes
Consideration of a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute all documents related to the lease 
agreement.

Administrative Report: The agreement is for the lease of a Bobcat Compact Excavator and 
attachments to be used in the Public Properties department. This is a 36-month lease with monthly 
payments of $841.61.

Following review and discussion, a motion to approve the lease agreement and attached resolution 
would be in order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 134 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 135 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 136 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 137 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 138 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 139 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 140 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 141 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 142 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 143 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 144 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 145 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 146 / 177



 

 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  

 

WHEREAS, CITY OF SEWARD (“Lessee”) is a validly existing political 

subdivision of the State of NE (the “State”), existing as such under and by 

virtue of the Constitution, statutes and laws of the State; 

 

WHEREAS,  the Mayor of the Lessee (the “Governing Body”) has the power 

under the laws of the State to lease or purchase personal property for use by 

the Lessee; and the Governing Body has determined, and hereby determines, 

that it is in the best interests of the Lessee to enter into a Municipal 

Lease Agreement with HAMILTON EQUIPMENT COMPANY (“Lessor”) which lease will 

be assigned to General Electric Credit Corporation of Tennessee (“Assignee”) 

pursuant to an assignment by Lessor to Assignee (such Municipal Lease 

Agreement and Assignment are herein together referred to as the “Lease”) for 

the purpose of financing the acquisition of the equipment (the “Equipment”) 

described in Exhibit A to the Lease, and that the  use of such Equipment is 

essential to the Lessee’s proper, efficient and economic operation; 

 

WHEREAS, the governing body has taken the necessary and appropriate 

steps under the applicable law, including, without limitation, and any public 

bidding requirements, to arrange for the acquisition and financing of the 

Equipment under the Lease; 

 

WHEREAS, the Lease terminates, and the Lessee’s obligations thereunder 

are extinguished, if the Governing Body fails to appropriate money for the 

ensuring fiscal year for the payment of the amounts due in such fiscal year; 

 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the Governing Body the form of the 

Lease, including Exhibit A thereto, which the Lessee proposes to approve, 

enter into and deliver, as applicable, to effectuate the proposed financing 

of the Equipment; and it appears that the Lease and its Exhibit A are in 

appropriate form and are appropriate instruments for the purposes intended. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  That all actions of the Lessee in effectuating the Lease 

are hereby approved, ratified and authorized pursuant to and in accordance 

with the transactions contemplated by the Lease. 

 

Section 2.  That sums be and hereby are allocated from the budget of 

the Governing Body for the fiscal year ending on September 30, 2015, 

sufficient to meet all obligations of the Lessee under the Lease, including 

without limitation Monthly Rent in the amount of $841.61 (plus applicable 

taxes) per month. 

 

Section 3.  The Governing Body hereby approves the acquisition by the 

Lessee of the Equipment described in Exhibit A to the Lease, such acquisition 

to be financed by Lessor/Assignee pursuant to and in accordance with the 

terms of the Lease, which will be a valid, legal and binding obligation of 

the Lessee enforceable in accordance with its terms. The form and content of 

the Lease are in all respects authorized approved and confirmed and the Mayor 

of the Lessee, or his designee is authorized, empowered and directed to 

execute and deliver the Lease and the other Documents (as defined in the 

Lease) for and on behalf of the Lessee in substantially the form attached 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 147 / 177



hereto, but with such changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein 

as shall to him seem necessary, desirable or appropriate. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT this Resolution take effect from and 

after its passage. 

 

The Mayor declared this resolution adopted. 

 

Approved this 16th day of June, 2015. 

 

    

 

  THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

ATTEST: ____________________________ 

  Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

       _______________________________ 

       Bonnie Otte  

       Assistant Administrator/ 

       Clerk-Treasurer/ 

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

(SEAL) 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 148 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G10

CONSIDERATION OF DIGESTER STORAGE TANK 
EMERGENCY REPAIRS - Possible bid award (Tim Richtig)

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 149 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 150 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 151 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 152 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G11

CONSIDERATION OF REQUEST TO UPGRADE 
CROSSWALK SIGNAGE & RELOCATION OF CROSSWALK 
ON N COLUMBIA AVE (Mel Aldrich)

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 153 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 154 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G12

CAPITAL PROJECTS UPDATE -  John Hughes

Administrative Report: The City Council will receive an update on capital and other on-going 
projects.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 155 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 156 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 157 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 158 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 159 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 160 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 161 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 162 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G13

FUTURE REQUESTS FOR COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS OR 
ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION - Mayor Eickmeier

Administrative Report: This item is to allow Council members an opportunity to request future 
agenda items. To remain in compliance with the open meetings law, no discussion of an item will be 
allowed beyond what is necessary to clarify the request.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 163 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G14

ANNOUNCEMENT OF UPCOMING EVENTS - Mayor 
Eickmeier
July 4th Celebration

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 164 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G15

CONSIDERATION OF  CITY ADMINISTRATOR
Appointment

Contract (Employment Agreement)

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 165 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 166 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 167 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 168 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 169 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 170 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 171 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 172 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 173 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 174 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 175 / 177



Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 176 / 177



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, June 16, 2015

Regular Session

Item G16

MOTION TO ADJOURN

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 6/16/2015 Page 177 / 177


